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Letter from the Presidemt

March 1, 2002

To our Stockholders:
MoSys had many achievements in 2001 and their significance is well worth reviewing here.

The biggest achievement was completing the successful transition from being predominately a
memory chip supplier to a company whose primary revenue is from licensing our 1T-SRAM® embedded
memory technology. This transition began in 1999 when we understood that our memory technology had
advanced to a level of cost and performance that made it ideal for embedded memory applications in
Systems-on-a-Chip (SOC). We had a vision when we started the company that we could be a major factor
in the huge, high-growth SOC market and that a successful transition to a licensing business would yield
a very profitable result. In 2001 that vision became a reality. In the first quarter, virtually all our revenue
was derived from sale of our stand alone 1T-SRAM chips; in the fourth quarter, over half our revenue was
derived from our 1T-SRAM licensing business.

The successful emergence of the intellectual property licensing business resulted in a 57% growth of
our revenue to $22.5 million in 2001. Net income was $7.0 million, up 426% from net income in 2000.
Predictably, with increasing licensing and royalty revenue during the year, the net income was equal to a
very robust 41% of revenue in the fourth quarter. Net income was equal to 31% of net revenue in the
total year.

2001 was a very profitable year for MoSys because of the high value that 1T-SRAM technology
provides to our licensees and the royalty stream it provides to us.

While demonstrating that we have a very profitable business model, in 2001 we also proved the
manufacturability and superior yields of the 1T-SRAM technology. To date, our licensees have shipped
20 million and we have shipped 3 million ICs with 1T-SRAM technology. This represents over one billion
megabits of memory. Cur technology is “volume production proven’.

Nintendo, one of our earliest and most important licensees to date, has successfully manufactured
millions of its new GameCube video consoles using our 1T-SRAM technology. Each GameCube console
has 24 Mbits of embedded memory in its graphics processor chip and 192 Mbits in its main memory
based on 1T-SRAM technology. The two main memory chips, which are manufactured by NEC for
Nintendo, each have 96 Mbits, making them the largest standalone SRAMs in volume production. We are
very proud of being part of this program because it demonstrates so dramatically how powerful our
1T-SRAM technology can be; and as you know, Nintendo has been very successful with its GameCube
entry into the video game market.

We continued in 2001 to add licensees that are using our technology in a wide range of consumer
and communications products. Applications now include video game consoles, digital cameras,
camcorders, 10/100/Giga bit Ethernet switches, flat panel display controllers, Video/MPEG coder-decoders,
DSL modems, DVD controllers, networking infrastructure, network interface, and cell phone handsets;
and we have multiple licensees in a number of these applications. We believe some of these will be
produced in very high volumes and contribute a significant amount to our future royalty revenue.

While we have 40 US patents issued and 17 patents pending, we have not and will not relent in our
determination to continually advance our technology and to maintain our technology lead. In 2001 and
earlier this year, we announced a number of important new advancements in the basic 1T-SRAM
technology:

> 1T-SRAM-X, an extended density memory that has densities of 1.6 times the density of the basic
version of our technology. This requires a few additional mask steps in the logic process but
enables very large embedded memories and can earn even greater savings than the basic
technology.




° 1T-SRAM-M, a low power version that is suited to applicaticns requiring very low operating and
standby power, such as cell phone handsets and wireless PDAs. This has enabled us to aggressively
pursue the very large cell phone handset market.

e 1T-SRAM-R, a version that includes Transparent Error Correction™ (TEC), which automatically
corrects memory errors during operation, including soft errors caused by high-energy particles, and
eliminates the need for laser repair in manufacturing test. This is accomplished without a penalty
of additional silicon area or additional cost. This capability is creating a lot of interest in the
market.

And finally, in 2001, we were able to complete an Initial Public Offering of stock. A.G. Edwards &
Sons and Needham & Company led the underwriting syndicate in this successful IPC and they continue
to provide our shareholders and us with great support. We believe this has allowed us to raise sufficient
funds to handle the cash demands we might have in the foreseeable future. It has also meant a lot to our
employees and our early investors.

Dr. Wingyu Leung, our co-founder, and I have had a vision of building 2 company with revolutionary
memory technology that would serve well the inevitable trend toward higher and higher levels of silicon
integration. The history of semiconductors reads like a journey along a path of increasing semiconductor
integration that began with small-scale integration (SSI), then large-sczie integration (LSI), then very large
scale integration (VLSI) and now Systems-on-a-Chip (SOC). We understood when we founded MoSys that
embedded memory would become a major factor as the complete system, including memory, was
integrated into a single monolithic chip. That’s why we chose Monolithic System Technology as our
company name.

We now see that our vision is a reality and that the future for MoSys is bright.

il

Fu-Chieh Hsu
President and Chief Executive Officer
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Part I

This Annual Report on Form 10-K and the documents incorporated berein by reference contain
Jorward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and
Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, which include, without limitation, statements about
the market for our technology, our strategy, competition, expected financial performance and other
aspects of our business identified in this Annual Report, as well as other reports that we file from time to
time with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Any statements about our business, financial
results, financial condition and operations contained in this Annual Report that are not statements of
bistorical fact may be deemed to be forward-looking statements. Without limiting the foregoing, the
words “believes,” “anticipates,” “‘expects,” “‘intends,” ‘‘projects,”’ or similar expressions are intended
to identify forward-looking statements. Our actual results could differ materially from those expressed
or implied by these forward-looking statements as a result of various factors, including the risk factors
described in Part I, Iteml, ‘“‘Business—Risk Factors,”’ and elsewbhere in this report. We undertake no
obligation to update publicly any forward-looking statements for any reason, except as required by
law, even as new information becomes available or other events occur in the future.

2 4

MoSys®, MultiBank®, MDRAM®, MCACHE® and 1T-SRAM® are our trademarks. Product names, trade
names and trademarks of other companies are also referred to in this report

Tteme 1. Business
Company Overview

We design, develop, license and market memory technologies used by the semiconductor industry
and electronic product manufacturers. We have developed a patented semiconductor memory technol-
ogy, called 1T-SRAM, that offers a combination of high density, low power consumption and high speed at
performance and cost levels that other available embedded memory technologies do not match. We
license our 1T-SRAM technology on a non-exclusive and worldwide basis to companies that incorporate,
or embed, memory on complex integrated circuits.

From our inception in 1991 until 1998, we focused primarily on the development of innovative
memory technologies and the sale of memory chips. Our memory chip development efforts in the early
years of our existence yielded critical elements of the 1T-SRAM technology. By the fourth quarter of 1998,
we completed the development of our 1T-SRAM technology and changed our primary strategic focus
from selling memory chips to licensing our 1T-SRAM technology.

Until the second quarter of 2001, we earned almost all of our revenue from the sale of memory chips
from four product lines. Prior to 1999, most of our memory chips were designed and sold for use in the
highly competitive personal computer market. In late 1998, we introduced our first 1T-SRAM memory
chip and since then have discontinued or substantially reduced our sales from our other three product
lines. The same high density, low power consumption and high speed features that characterize our
1T-SRAM technology make our 1T-SRAM memory chips attractive to customers that need these features in
a single memory chip. Our 1T-SRAM memory chips compete with high performance SRAM chips offered
by many other companies. Despite a large potential market for these chips, we intentionally limit this
portion of our business by offering a narrow range of product configurations, maintaining a small sales
organization and focusing our research and engineering resources on our licensing business instead of
new chip development. Our limited development and sales of 1T-SRAM chips provide us with opportuni-
ties to earn revenue, validate high volume production of chips using our 1T-SRAM technology and build
relationships with customers that may be future licensees.




We generate revenue from intellectual property licensing, which consists of licensing revenue and
royalty revenue. Qur licensing revenue consists of fees paid for engineering development and engineer-
ing support services. We are entitled to receive royalties under each of our licensing agreements when
our licensees manufacture or sell products that incorporate our technology. We anticipate that licensing
and royalty revenues will represent the majority of our future revenues.

Industry Background
Trends in the Semiconductor Industry

Electronic products play an increasingly important role in our lives, as evidenced by the growth of
the perscnal computer, wireless communications, networking equipment and consumer electronics
markets. These markets are characterized by intensifying competition, rapid innovation, increasing
performance requirements and continuing cost pressures. To manufacture electronic products that
achieve optimal performance and cost levels, semiconductor companies must produce integrated cir-
cuits that offer higher performance, greater functionality and lower cost.

Two important measures of performance are speed and power consumption. Higher-speed inte-
grated circuits can allow electronic products to operate faster, enabling the performance of more
functions. Reducing the power consumption of integrated circuits contributes to increased battery life
and reduced heat generation in electronic products. Reduced power consumption also enables inte-
grated circuit designers to overcome costly design hurdies, such as meeting the thermal limitations of
low-cost packaging materials.

In addition to offering high-performance products, semiconductor companies must produce inte-
grated circuits that are cost effective. High-density integrated circuits require less silicon, thus reducing
their size and cost. Cost reduction can also be achieved by simplifying the integrated circuit’s manufactur-
ing process and improving manufacturing yield. Additionally, to avoid the high cost of substantial
redesigns, semiconductor companies can use technology, which is scalable, which means it can be readily
incorporated into multiple generations of manufacturing process technologies. Process technology
generations are distinguished in terms of the dimension of the integrated circuit’s smallest topographical
features, as measured in microns (one millionth of a meter). The semiconductor industry has continu-
ously developed advanced process technologies that enable the reduction of silicon area on integrated
circuits and consequently lower costs. The industry is predominantly using 0.25-micron and 0.18-micron
manufacturing process technology today. However, current designs are also being implemented in
0.15-micron and 0.13-micron manufacturing process technology, and are expected to migrate to
0.10-micron manufacturing process technologies in the future.

Importance of Integration

For decades, the semiconductor industry has continuously increased the value of integrated circuits
by improving their density, power consumption, speed and cost. The main driver for these improvements
has been the success of shrinking the size of the basic semiconductor building block, or transistor.
Transistors have become small enough to make it economical to combine multiple functions, such as
microprocessors, memory, analog components and digital signal processors, on a single integrated
circuit, in what is commonly referred to as System-on-a-Chip, or SOC. Highly integrated circuits such as
SOCs often offer advantages in density, power consumption, speed and cost that cannot be matched
using separate, discrete integrated circuits. SOCs are essential for most electronic products, such as
celtular phones, video game consoles, networking equipment and internet appliances, to achieve desired
performance at a reasonable cost.




Importance of Embedded Memory

Historically, semiconductor companies implemented memory in separate integrated circuits. Rather
than using separate memory chips, semiconductor companies today are embedding memory on highly
integrated circuits in order to optimize performance and size. At the same time, the increasing sophistica-
tion of electronic products is driving a rapid increase in the amount of memory required.

The high cost of incorporating the memory component represents a major challenge to achieving
high levels of integration. Embedded memory accounts for an increasing percentage of the size of a
highly integrated circuit and is often the slowest or rate-limiting function in the circuit. Not only must
integrated circuits contain a larger amount of embedded memory, this memory must be dense enough to
be economically attractive and must offer sufficiently high speed and low power consumption. Embed-
ded memory has become a crucial design consideration for determining the overall cost and perform-
ance of highly integrated circuits and the growing number of electronic products in which they are
incorporated.

Traditional SRAM

The most common form of embedded memory today utilizes traditional static random access
memory, or SRAM technology, that we refer to as traditional SRAM. This technology is in the public
domain and can be used by any semiconductor company. Traditional SRAM has the following characteris-
tics—

° it operates at the same high speeds as other functions of the integrated circuit;

° it provides a simple and familiar interface that allows for quick design into an integrated circuit
with less risk that the design will not function according to specification; and

° it utilizes the standard logic manufacturing process that is both economical and the most widely
available.

As memory requirements increase, however, traditional SRAM becomes relatively more expensive
compared to the total cost of the integrated circuit. Specifically, traditional SRAM has the following
drawbacks that can lead to higher cost—

° it requires a substantial amount of silicon area because of its low density; and
° jt consumes a significant amount of power when operating at high speeds.

To overcome the density limitations of traditional SRAM, some manufacturers have utilized embed-
ded dynamic random access memory, or embedded DRAM. While embedded DRAM is denser than
traditional SRAM, it is typically ten times slower. Manufacturing embedded DRAM also requires addi-
tional process steps and results in low yields, which translate into increased manufacturing time and cost.
Additionally, because of its complex interface requirements, embedded DRAM is more difficult to incor-
porate on integrated circuits, leading to a higher risk of failure. As integrated circuit designers have
experimented with embedded DRAM, they have discovered that these limitations of embedded DRAM
preclude its use in almost all applications. Therefore, traditional SRAM continues to be the most widely
used technology for embedded memory. One of the major challenges for the semiconductor industry
today is to find an embedded memory solution that combines high density, low power consumption,
high speed and low cost.



Solution

We have developed an innovative memory technology, 1T-SRAM memory, which provides major
advantages over traditional SRAM in density, power consumption and cost, thus making it more economi-
cal for designers to incorporate large amounts of embedded memory in their designs. In addition,
1T-SRAM technology offers all of the benefits of traditional SRAM, such as high speed, simple interface
and ease of manufacturability. Its core circuitry is already production proven in millions of our memory
chips and offers integrated circuit designers the following characteristics compared to traditional
SRAM—

Parameters Typical Characteristics of 1T-SRAM technology vs. traditional SRAM

Density Two to three times denser, using 50-70% less silicon for the same
amount of memory

Power Consumption Consumes less than one-quarter the power when operating at the same
speed

Speed Provides speeds equal to or greater than those offered by traditional

SRAM, especially for larger memory sizes

Our 1T-SRAM technology can achieve these advantages while utilizing standard logic manufacturing
processes and providing the simple, standard SRAM interface that designers are accustomed to today.

High Density

Embedded memory utilizing our 1T-SRAM technology is typically two to three times denser than
traditional SRAM. Increased density enables manufacturers of electronic products, such as cellular
phones and video game consoles, to incorporate additional functiconality into a single integrated circuit,
resulting in overall cost savings. Semiconductor designers can take advantage of the high density of
1T-SRAM technology and embed large quantities of high-performance memory and other components
that in the past might not have been feasible.

Low Power Consumption

Embedded memory utilizing our 1T-SRAM technology typically consumes less than one-quarter the
power and generates less heat than traditional SRAM when operating at the same speed. This feature
facilitates longer battery life and reliable operation using lower-cost packaging.

High Speed

Embedded memory utilizing our 1T-SRAM technology typically provides speeds equal to or greater
than the speeds of traditional SRAM, especially for larger memory sizes. Qur 1T-SRAM memory can
sustain random access cycle times of less than three nanoseconds. In today’s 0.13-micron manufacturing
process technology, our 1T-SRAM technology can operate with a random access frequency in excess of
350 megzahertz for multi-megabit memory.

Manufacturing Process Independence

We have been able to implement our technology without requiring the manufacturer to make any
significant changes to either standard logic or alternative manufacturing processes. 1T-SRAM’s portability,
or the ease with which it can be implemented in different semiconductor manufacturing facilities, has
been proven operational in the fabrication of chips at Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Co., Ltd., or




TSMC, United Microelectronics Corporation, or UMC, and Chartered Semiconductor Manufactur-
ing Ltd., the world’s three largest independent foundries. 1T-SRAM’s scalability, or the ease with which it
can be implemented in different generations of manufacturing processes, has already been demon-
strated in the fabrication of chips in 0.25-micron, 0.18-micron, 0.15-micron and 0.13-micron process
generations. We expect our technology to continue to scale readily to future process generations. This
portability and scalability provides for wide availability, inexpensive implementation and quick product
time to market for our licensees.

Simplicity of Interface

Our 1T-SRAM technology’s internal circuitry connects to the simple, standard SRAM interface that
designers are accustomed to today. Our use of this standard high-performance interface minimizes
design time, thus optimizing time to market for our licensees. This simple interface also helps minimize
the risk that integrated circuit designs will not operate according to specifications.

Strategy and Business Model

Our goal is to establish our 1T-SRAM technology as the standard for the embedded memory market.
We intend to achieve this goal by licensing our technology on a non-exclusive and worldwide basis to
semiconductor companies and electronic product manufacturers.

The following are integral aspects of our strategy and business model.

Proliferate Technology through a Diverse Distribution Strategy

Our solution offers performance features and cost benefits that existing embedded memory solu-
tions do not provide. We have strategic relationships with many companies, including Applied Micro
Circuits Corporation, Broadcom, Chartered, Conexant, eSilicon, Galileo Technology, LSI Logic, Matsu-
shita Communication Industrial, NEC, Nintendo, Pixelworks, Power X, SONY, TSMC, UMC, Via Technolo-
gies, and Globespan Virata. We license our technology to semiconductor companies who incorporate our
technology into integrated circuits that they then sell to customers. We also license our technology to
electronic product manufacturers, who then require their suppliers to adopt our technology. In addition,
we engage in co-marketing activities with foundries, intellectual property companies and design compa-
nies to promote our technology to a wide base of customers. We believe that these distribution channels
will broaden the acceptance and availability of our technology in the industry. As our technology
becomes available through an increasing number of channels, we believe it will be less likely that
customers will have to alter their procurement practices in order to acquire our technology. We intend to
continue to expand significantly this base of strategic relationships to further proliferate our technology.

Target Large and Growing Markets

Although our 1T-SRAM technology is applicable to many markets, we presently focus on the rapidly
growing communications and consumer electronics sectors. These sectors increasingly require embed-
ded memory solutions with higher density, lower power consumption, higher speeds and lower cost. We
will also focus over the longer term on other markets that are projected to achieve strong, long-term
growth.




Work Closely with our Licensees and Co-Marketers to Deliver Optimal Technology Solutions

We intend to continue to work closely with our licensees and co-marketers to gain broad and
detailed insight into their own and their customers’ current and next-generation technology require-
ments. This insight helps us identify trends and focus our development efforts on optimizing our
technology solution, resulting in shorter product time to market and lower costs.

Extend Technology Offerings

Our goal is to continue to enhance our 1T-SRAM technology and increase our share of the embedded
memory market. We will continue to develop our technology in order to offer even higher-density, lower-
power-consumption, higher-speed and lower-cost designs for our licensees. We are currently developing
new generations of 1T-SRAM technology in the 0.13-micron and 0.10-micron manufacturing process and
intend to continue developing our technology for future processes. We will continue to invest heavily in
research to develop related embedded memory technologies. Recently, we developed 1T-SRAM-M, a very
low power memory, which operates with standby power more than an order of magnitude lower than
1T-SRAM standby power. IT-SRAM-M is suitable for handheld battery powered applications such as cell
phone handsets, personal digital assistants (PDA), and digital cameras. We have also introduced the
1T-SRAM-R, a version of 1T-SRAM, which includes built-in error checking and correction (ECC).

Leverage Memory Chips to Demonstrate Technology to Licensees

Revenue from the sale of memory chips has constituted a majority of cur historical revenue. Today,
our memory chip selling efforts focus on 1T-SRAM memory chips. We expect to continue to generate
IT-SRAM memory chip revenue, as these products serve to demonstrate the manufacturability of our
1T-SRAM technology to licensees. Our direct involvement in these products also helps to keep our
research and development efforts focused on delivering leading-edge technologies and meeting industry
requirements.

Focus on Higher-Margin Licensing Model

Our intellectual property licensing revenue consists of licensing revenue and royalties. This licens-
ing revenue typically produces higher gross margins than can be achieved with the sale of our memory
chips. We intend to focus on our intellectual property licenses as the major source of our future revenue.

Customer and Co-Marketing Relationships

We offer our technology on a non-exclusive and worldwide basis to semiconductor companies,
electronic product manufacturers, foundries, intellectual property companies and design companies
through product development, technology licensing and co-marketing relaticnships.

We form product development and licensing relationships directly with semiconductor companies
and electronic product manufacturers. Generally, we require the prospective licensee to identify one or
more specific projects for the use of cur technology. The prospective licensee’s implementation of the
1T-SRAM technology typically includes customized development. Usually, these relationships involve
both engineering work to impiement our technology in the specified product and licensing the technol-
ogy for manufacture and sale of the product. Although the precise terms of each agreement vary, every
agreement provides for the payment of contract fees to us at the beginning of the contract and the joint
development of specifications and initial product design and engineering. The agreements usually
provide for payment of additional contract fees to us upon the achievement of specified development
milestones. The agreements also often provide for the payment of additional contract fees if we provide




engineering support services related to the manufacture of the product. License agreement royalty
provisions require the payment of royalties to us based on future sale or manufacture of products
utilizing 1T-SRAM technology. Generally, our licenses grant rights only to use our technology as modified
for the project covered by the license agreement or amendment. Usually, the license is nontransferable,
nonexclusive and generally can be sublicensed, if at all, only to subsidiaries. Our license agreements
generally have a fixed five-year term and are subject to renewal.

Some of our agreements cover both the development and licensing aspects of the technology
relationship. In other cases, we enter into an agreement with the prospective licensee covering only our
initial project development work, non-refundable contract fees and a summary of acceptable license
terms, including royalties, and subsequently enter into a separate comprehensive license agreement if
the prospective licensee decides to complete development of its project. Each new project requires a
separate agreement or the modification of an existing agreement.

Not all of our technology relationships will result in the manufacture and sale of royalty-bearing
products by our licensees, from which we expect to earn most of our revenues in the future. Therefore, to
increase the number of royalty-generating license agreements for our 1T-SRAM technology, an important
element of our strategy is to offer this technology broadly in order to establish it as an industry standard.

We form co-marketing relationships with dedicated foundries such as TSMC, UMC and Chartered
Semiconductor Manufacturing Corporation. While these foundries generally do not provide third-party
intellectual property directly to their customers, under our March 2001 license agreement, TSMC
acquired the right to offer design services for 1T-SRAM macros, or pre-designed circuit blocks, solely to
TSMC customers not currently under active contract with us that are using TSMC technologies to
manufacture products at TSMC. We would receive royalties on silicon wafers manufactured by TSMC that
incorporate our licensed technology.

These foundries have cooperated with us to prove the manufacturability of integrated circuits
utilizing our 1T-SRAM technology in their particular manufacturing process. The foundries can then offer
their manufacturing services to our licensees, and semiconductor companies can fabricate integrated
circuits incorporating our 1T-SRAM technology in any of these three largest independent foundries.
These foundries are not obligated to actively market 1T-SRAM technology. Generally, our foundry
co-marketing arrangements have a two-year term.

We also have entered into a co-marketing agreement with an intellectual property company, Virage
Logic, which has agreed to promote 1T-SRAM technology in association with its intellectual property. Our
agreement with Virage Logic provides for co-development of a compiler, which is a software program that
automatically designs the memory for a particular customer’s memory requirements. Under this agree-
ment, Virage Logic will sell a compiler incorporating our 1T-SRAM technology, and we will share in the
revenue from each sale. Additionally, when the Virage Logic customer develops a product utilizing the
1T-SRAM compiler, that customer must enter into a license agreement directly with us. We would earn a
royalty on subsequent product sales. This agreement has a three-year term, and is terminable by either
party upon 90 days’ notice.




The following table lists some of our most significant 1T-SRAM agreements, in reverse chronological

Application

order.

Company Date
Matsushita Communications Industrial . . . . Q4 2001
eSilicon . ... ... ... ... .. . ... . .. Q4 2001
Globespan Virata . . ................. Q3 2001
TSMC .. Q1 2001
AMCC ... . Q1 2001
Power X ... ... ... . ... . . Q1 2001
SONY .. .. Q4 2000
Conexant. . .. ... .ot Q3 2000
Galileo Technology . . .. .............. Q3 2000
Via Technologies . .................. Q2 2000
LSILogic . . ... .. ... . i Q1 2000
Broadcom . ............. ... ... . ... Q1 2000
Allayer Communications . . . . .......... Q4 1999
Galileo Technology . . .. .............. Q4 1999
NEC ... Q4 1999
Pixelworks . . .. ...... ... ... .. ... ... Q4 1999
NEC ... .. Q3 1999
Nintendo . . . . ....... ... ... ....... Q3 1999
NEC ... Q1 1999

Custom application specific memory
Communications

Communications

Semiconductor Foundry
Communications

Communications

Custom application specific memory
Communications

Communications

Application specific standard products
(ASSPs)

Communications, application specific
integrated circuits (ASICs) and application
specific standard products (ASSPs)
Communications

Communications

Communications

Custom application specific memory
Imaging

Custom application specific memory
Video game consoles

Application specific integrated circuits
(ASICs)

The following table illustrates our current co-marketing relationships, in reverse chronological

Application

order.

Company Date
UMC ... . e Q4 2001
Chartered . ... ... ... ... .. ... ... Q2 2000
UMC ... e Q2 2000
TSMC / Virage Logic . .. ... ........... Q3 1999
TSMC ... e Q1 1999

Research and Development

Standard Macro Logic Process

Prove technology on Chariered’s logic
processes

Port technology to UMC's standard logic
processes

MoSys and Virage Logic to co-develop
compilers for TSMC’s standard logic
processes

Port technology to TSMC'’s standard logic
processes

Our ability to compete in the future will depend on improving our technology to meet the market’s
increasingly demanding performance and cost requirements. We have assembled a team of highly skilled
engineers whose activities are focused on developing even higher-density, lower-power-consumption,
higher-speed and lower-cost 1T-SRAM designs. We expect to continue to focus our research and develop-
ment efforts on extending our 1T-SRAM technology and developing new memory technologies. We will
also continue our focus on porting our technology to additional semiconductor manufacturing facilities

and scaling our technology to new generations of manufacturing process technologies.




As of December 31, 2001, we employed 44 engineers, representing 66% of our employees, with
specific expertise in circuit design, layout and a variety of manufacturing processes. In June 2001, we
established a design center in Seoul, South Korea where seven of our employees reside. For the years
ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, research and development expenditures totaled approxi-
mately $4.4 million, $3.3 million and $3.1 million, respectively.

Technology

Our innovative 1T-SRAM technology includes many new and proprietary features. Development of
our memory chips during the early years of our existence was critical to validating elements of the
1T-SRAM technology we license today. This technology combines the high density advantages of DRAM
with the high performance and utility of SRAM. Underlying this technology are several distinct pieces of
proprietary circuitry.

Single-Transistor Memory Storage Cell

The high density of our 1T-SRAM technology stems from the use of a single-transistor, or 1T, storage
cell for each bit of information, which is similar to DRAM. Our 1T storage cell using one transistor and
one capacitor represents a very significant improvement in density over the six-transistor storage cells
used by traditional SRAM.

The following diagrams, drawn to scale, but not to actual size, are electrical schematics of the
traditional SRAM storage cell and our 1T-SRAM storage cell. The comparison of the two diagrams
illustrates the small size and reduced complexity of the 1T-SRAM storage cell. This results in significant
cost savings because less silicon space is required by 1T-SRAM storage cells.

Six Transistor SRAM Storage Cell Schematic 1T-SRAM Storage Cell Schematic

Bl
Line

Ward Uine I

Bit Line
Bit Line

Word Line

Six Transistor Storage Cell Area 1T-SRAM Storage Cell Area
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MultiBank Technology

The high speed and low power consumption of 1T-SRAM are enabled by cur MultiBank technology,
as iltustrated above. This technology efficiently partitions the memory into many, typically hundreds, of
fast, small sub-blocks of memory, or banks, that can operate independently over high-speed data buses.
Only one small bank containing the required memory data must be active for each access to the memory.
Therefore, the remaining bartks can stay in a low-power, standby mode, reducing the overall power
consumption of the memory.

Standard SRAM Interface

Our technology incorporates all of the circuitry required to connect to the simple, high-performance
interface to which integrated circuit designers are accustomed. Our 1T-SRAM technology appears to the
rest of the integrated circuit and the designer as if it were traditional SRAM.

Ability to Use Standard Logic Manufacturing Process

Another key area of innovation in our 1T-SRAM memory technology is the ability to use a standard
logic manufacturing process. This characteristic is advantageous because standard logic is the most
widely available process. As many of the other functions on an integrated circuit are implemented in a
standard logic process, the ability to implement 1T-SRAM memories using the same process saves time
and cost for the manufacturer. Other embedded memory technologies do not achieve the same density
and performance using the standard logic process.

Licensed Technology and Memory Chips

We license the 1T-SRAM technology in the form of customized memory designs and memory
compilers. We also sell memory chips based on our 1T-SRAM technology, which constitute substantially
all of our memory chip sales.
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Licensed Memory Designs

We offer standard 1T-SRAM memory designs and generate customized 1T-SRAM memory designs to
meet a specific customer’s design parameters. We also offer a variety of options for interface and power
management. Our licensed memory designs can be ported to the manufacturing processes of leading
foundries and semiconductor manufacturers.

We continue to implement our 1T-SRAM technology on advanced generations of manufacturing
processes. As a result, our licensees are able to implement their integrated circuits, incorporating
1T-SRAM embedded memory on the highest performance manufacturing processes available. The chart
below illustrates the advances we have made in implementing and verifying 1T-SRAM technology on the
latest generations of manufacturing processes. The processes with the smaller micron dimensions have
higher random access speeds and typically enable larger capacity memories.

Process Generatiom 0.25-micron 0.18-micron 0.15-micron 0.13-microm
Date of 1T-SRAM Verification . .. September 1999 January 2000 May 2000 April 2001
Typical Memory Capacity . . . . . . 1-16 megabits 1-32 megabits  1-48 megabits 1-64 megabits
Random Access Speed . . . . .. .. 100-250 MHz 100-350 MHz  100-400 MHz 100-450 MHz

Memory Compilers and Compiled Memory Solutions

In January 2000, we announced 1T-SRAM compilers for TSMC’s 0.18-micron and 0.15-micron
standard logic processes as part of a joint development agreement with Virage Logic. Under this agree-
ment, we will license these compilers to enable our licensees and their customers to automatically
generate and configure 1T-SRAM designs. In addition to licensing the 1T-SRAM compilers, companies are
able to license standard 1T-SRAM off-the-shelf memory designs from us.

Memory Chip Products

SRAM memory chips satisfy a large market demand for high-speed memory chips used to store data
in electronic products. There are several large companies that have chosen to manufacture SRAM chips
using traditional technology. After completing the development of our 1T-SRAM technology in 1998, we
began selling our first memory chips incorporating this technology. Like our 1T-SRAM embedded mem-
ory technology, our 1T-SRAM chips have small memory cell circuitry, require low power consumption and
operate at high speeds, which makes them a cost effective memory chip solution for networking and
communication applications, such as routers, switches and network processors.

Manufacturers of such wired data communications applications typically purchase memory chips in
industry standard sizes, speeds and configurations. The memory size of a chip indicates the number of
memory storage bits on the chip; speed reflects the rate at which a processing system can access the
memory; and configuration indicates the number of memory storage bits that can be accessed
simultaneously.

In order to appeal to manufacturers of wired data communications applications, we currently sell
memory chips with memory size, speed and configuration specifications consistent with those offered by
most memory chip suppliers. In general, we seek to design and sell memory chips with specifications
used by a large group of communications product manufacturers. We believe that this strategy enables us
to increase the return from the limited resources and development efforts that we have decided to invest
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in our IT-SRAM memory chip business. The table below details the range of memory sizes, speeds and
configurations of our IT-SRAM memory chips.

Size (Megabits) Speed (MHz) Configuration (words X bits)
4 66, 83, 100, 133, 150 64K X 64, 128K x 32
8 66, 83, 100, 133, 150, 166 256K X 32
9 66, 83, 100, 133, 150, 166, 200 256K X 36
36 133, 166, 200 IM % 36

We sell these memory chips primarily to suppliers of communications equipment, such as Accton
Technology Corporation, Alteon WebSystems, Cisco Systems, Inc., Delta Network and Electronics, Foun-
dry Networks, Maxtek Technology, MCM Japan, Motorola and Polycom. We intend to continue limited
development of new memory chips based on our 1T-SRAM technology by focusing on the development
of larger memory size, lower power consumption and higher speed chips.

We believe that designing and producing these 1T-SRAM memory chips significantly enhance our
ability to promote and improve our 1T-SRAM technology. Sales of 1T-SRAM memory chips to suppliers of
communications equipment also increase the visibility of our technology in this important market for
licensing our 1T-SRAM technology. We lack manufacturing resources and other guaranteed sources of
supply for 1T-SRAM memory chips, however, and intend to allocate most of our engineering resources to
the development of 1T-SRAM technology in support of our licensing business. Currently, 1T-SRAM
memory chips constitute the majority of our revenue, but we do not expect to significantly expand the
scope of our products business beyond current levels.

In addition to our 1T-SRAM memory chips, we have sold memory chips from three other product
lines:

o multibank dynamic random access memory, or MDRAM, a proprietary memory chip for use
primarily with graphics applications in personal computers, which we first shipped in 1996;

¢ MCACHE, our brand name for another proprietary line of personal computer memory chips,
which we first shipped in 1996; and

o synchronous graphics random access memory, or SGRAM, an industry standard memory chip
design for use primarily with graphics applications in personal computers, which we first shipped
in 1997. '

We ceased shipping MCACHE in early 1999. By the end of the second quarter of 2000, we had ceased
production of MDRAM chips, which we presently sell in limited amounts from remaining inventory. We
presently ship SGRAM chips in low volumes only to support small orders from existing customers. In
2001, more than 90% of cur product revenue was generated from 1T-SRAM memory chips. We anticipate
that virtually all of our future product revenue will be derived from sales of 1T-SRAM memory chips.

Intellectual Property

We regard our patents, copyrights, trademarks, trade secrets and similar intellectual property as
critical to our success, and rely on a combination of patent, trademark, copyright, and trade secret laws to
protect our proprietary rights. As of December 31, 2001, we held 40 U.S. patents on various aspects of
our technology, with expiration dates ranging from 2011 to 2019. These 40 patents include claims
relating to multibank partitioning, 1T-SRAM internal operation and circuit techniques, high-speed opera-
tion techniques, IT-SRAM refresh management techniques and the interface of embedded 1T-SRAM
storage cells in logic processes. We currently have 17 pending U.S. patent applications, and have received
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notices of allowance with respect to four of these applications. We also hold 20 foreign patents with
expiration dates ranging from 2012 to 2019, and 19 pending foreign patent applications. There can be no
assurance that others will not independently develop similar or competing technology or design around
any patents that may be issued to us, or that we will be able to enforce our patents against infringement.

The semiconductor industry is characterized by frequent litigation regarding patent and other
intellectual property rights. While we have not received formal notice of any infringement of the rights of
any third party, questions of infringement in the semiconductor field involve highly technical and
subjective analyses. Litigation may be necessary in the future to enforce our patents and other intellectual
property rights, to protect our trade secrets, to determine the validity and scope of the proprietary rights
of others, or to defend against claims of infringement or invalidity, and there can be no assurance that we
would prevail in any future litigation. Any such litigation, whether or not determined in our favor or
settled by us, would be costly and would divert the efforts and attention of our management and
technical personnel from normal business operations, which would have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and results of operations. Adverse determinations in litigation could result
in the loss of our proprietary rights, subject us to significant liabilities, require us to seek licenses from
third parties or prevent us from licensing our technology, any of which could have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. Moreover, the laws of certain foreign
countries in which our technology is or may in the future be licensed may not protect our intellectual
property rights to the same extent as the laws of the United States, thus increasing the possibility of
infringement of our intellectual property.

Sales and Marketing
1T-SRAM Technology Licensing

We have a staff of six sales and marketing executives, as of December 31, 2001, who manage our
1T-SRAM technology licensing activities. One is located in Helsinki, Finland and is responsible for
licensing activities in Europe and the Middle East. This group manages the negotiation of license
agreements, provides technical support during the sales cycle to licensees and administers the contracts.
We also have engaged one company to act as our non-exclusive licensing representative in Japan. As we
have multiple sales channels through our relationships with semiconductor companies, foundries,
intellectual property companies and design companies, we do not believe that we require a large internal
sales force. Our marketing and promotional activities include participation in industry trade shows,
distribution of collateral marketing material, publication of articles in trade journals and publicizing our
licensing activities and technology achievements. Selling activity revolves around presentations and
working sessions with the senior technical staff of target companies.

Memory Chips

A separate group of four individuals, as of December 31, 2001, is responsible for sales and marketing
of memory chips. Marketing activities include the creation of marketing materials and articles for trade
publications, as well as publicity of new memory chips. We also use 22 independent sales representatives
throughout North America and Asia to promote our memory chips to their customers.

Competition

In order to remain competitive, we believe we must continue to provide higher-density, lower-
power-consumption, higher-speed and lower-cost technology solutions to the semiconductor industry
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and electronic product manufacturers. We believe that the principal competitive factors in our industry
are—

° density and cost;

° power consumption;

° speed,;

o portability to different manufacturing processes;

o scalability to different manufacturing process generations;

° interface requirements; and

° the ease with which technology can be customized for and incorporated into customers’ products.

We believe that our 1T-SRAM technology offers a high degree of overall performance improvement
over traditional SRAM. Companies may also satisfy embedded memory needs through traditional SRAM
and embedded DRAM. Traditionai SRAM relies on publicly available process technology and circuit
designs, which semiconductor companies can use without paying a royalty to us. Embedded DRAM
utilizes the semiconductor manufacturer’s own manufacturing process and a circuit design that is in the
public domain. We believe that many semiconductor companies using embedded memory may prefer to
license our technology instead of implementing either of these alternatives because of 1T-SRAM’s overall
advantages.

The technological advantages offered by our 1T-SRAM technology might not be utilized in some
applications. Qur licensees and prospective licensees can meet their current needs for embedded
memory using other memory solutions with different cost and performance parameters. For example,
alternative solutions may be more cost-effective for memory block sizes of less than 128 kilobits. In
addition, 1T-SRAM technology is not suitable for replacing lower-cost traditional DRAM memory chips if
higher access speed is unnecessary.

Moreover, some companies assess greater uncertainty and risk in relying on our newly established
1T-SRAM technology. As a result, our ability to compete effectively may be limited because such compa-
nies may prefer to use more established traditicnal memory solutions that are freely available without a
license.

Customers for our 1T-SRAM memory chips can choose to purchase SRAM memory chips from a
number of companies, including Cypress Semiconductor Corporation, Integrated Device Technol-
ogy, Inc., Micron Technology, Inc. and Samsung Corporation. These suppliers utilize traditiocnal architec-
ture and technology for their SRAM chips, which do not match the performance, low power and cost
effectiveness of our 1T-SRAM memory chips for the applications needed by our current customers for
these chips. However, these suppliers do have the advantage of supplying memory chips from their own
wafer manufacturing plants and typically offer a broad range of memory products that includes devices
other than SRAM memory chips. In addition, these companies have greater access to financial, technical
and other resources.

Manufacturing

We have designed the circuitry of cur 1T-SRAM technology so that our licensees can manufacture it
in standard logic process as well as other widely used embedded memory processes.
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For our stand-alone memory products, we implement a fabless manufacturing strategy by using
relationships with independent foundries. Today, we rely exclusively upon TSMC for our stand-alone
product manufacturing. We also use domestic and offshore subcontractors for assembly, testing and
packaging. Assembly and test services provided by these subcontractors comply with the requirements of
ISO-9000. We presently have no firm, written commitment with any semiconductor foundry for the
fabrication of our memory chips. All fabrication is conducted on a purchase-order basis at an agreed price
that is renegotiated from time to time.

Employees

As of December 31, 2001, we had 67 full time employees, consisting of 44 in research and develop-
ment, product engineering and manufacturing engineering, 10 in sales and marketing, 10 in finance and
administration and 3 in operations management. We believe our future success will depend, in part, on
our ability to continue to attract and retain qualified technical and management personnel, particularly
highly skilled design engineers involved in new product development, for whom competition is intense.
Our employees are not represented by any collective bargaining unit and we have not experienced any
work stoppage. We believe that our employee relations are good.

Risk Factors

If any of the following risks actually occur, our business, results of operations and financial condition
could suffer significantly.

Our success depends upon the semiconductor market’s acceptance of our 1T-SRAM
technology.

The future prospects of our business depend on the acceptance by our target markets of our
I1T-SRAM technology for embedded memory applications and any future technology we might develop.
Cur technology is intended to allow our licensees to develop embedded memory integrated circuits to
replace other embedded memory applications with different cost and performance parameters. Our core
technology solution utilizes a fundamentally different internal circuitry with which the industry is not
familiar. Therefore, it might prove difficult to convince product designers of the viability of our embed-
ded memory solution and to adopt our technology instead of other memory solutions which have proven
effective in their products. In addition, we cannot assure you that our existing and proposed technology
will perform the desired functions, will operate reliably on a long-term basis or otherwise will be
technically successful, or that it will offer sufficient cost and performance benefits to achieve widespread
market acceptance.

An important part of our strategy to gain market acceptance is to penetrate new markets by targeting
market leaders as licensees of our technology. This strategy is designed to encourage other participants in
those markets to follow these leaders in adopting our technology. Should a high-profile industry partici-
pant adopt our technology for one or more of its products but fail to achieve success with those products,
other industry participants’ perception of our technology could be harmed. Any such event could reduce
the number of future licenses of our technology. Likewise, we are a market leader to adopt and achieve
success with a competing technology, our reputation and licensing program could be harmed. Failure of
our technology to be adopted as an industry standard would inhibit our growth and prevent us from
achieving anticipated revenues.
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Our embedded memory technology is new and has had limited high volume production and the
discovery of defects in this technology could prevent us from achieving market acceptance.

We entered into our first license of a significant portion of our 1T-SRAM technology for embedded
memory applications in March 1999. Our technology was fabricated and verified to be operational in the
most widely used standard logic manufacturing process generation in September 1999. While our
licensees and we have evaluated and tested this technology, only three licensees have begun volume
manufacture of products incorporating our technology. Complex technology like curs often contains
errors or defects when first incorporated into customer products. The discovery of defects or problems
regarding the reliability, quality or compatibility of our tecknology could require significant expenditures
of capital and resources to fix, significantly delay or hinder market acceptance of our technology and
damage our reputation.

Qur lengthy licensing cycle and our licensees’ lengthy product development cycles will make the
operating results of our licensing busimess difficult to predict.

We anticipate difficulty in accurately predicting the timing and amounts of revenue generated from
licensing our 1T-SRAM technology. The establishment of a business relationship with a potential licensee
is a lengthy process, frequently spanning a year or more. Following the establishment of the relationship,
the negotiation of licensing terms can be time consuming, and a potential licensee could require an
extended evaluation and testing period.

Once a license agreement is executed, the timing and amount of licensing and royalty revenue from
our licensing business will remain difficult to predict. The completion of the licensees’ development
projects and the commencement of production will be subject to the licensees’ efforts, development
risks and other factors outside our control. Our royalty revenue may depend on such factors as the
licensees’ production and shipment volumes, the timing of product shipments and when the licensees
report to us the manufacture or sale of products that include our 1T-SRAM technology. All of these factors
will prevent us from making predictions of revenue with any certainty and could cause us to experience
substantial period-to-period fluctuations in operating results.

In addition, none of our licensees is under any obligation to incorporate our technology in any
present or future product or to pursue the manufacture or sale of any product incorporating our
technology. A licensee’s decision to complete a project or manufacture a product is subject to changing
economic, marketing or strategic factors. The long development cycle of our licensees’ products
increases the risk that these factors will cause the licensee to change its plans. In the past, a few licensees
have discontinued development of products incorporating our technology. These customers’ decisions
were based on factors unrelated to our technology, but, as a result, it is unlikely that we will receive
royalties in connection with those products. We expect that, from time to time, our licensees will
discontinue a product line or cancel a product introduction, which could adversely affect our future
operating results and business.

Anything that negatively affects the businesses of our licensees could megatively impact our
revenue.

The timing and level of our royalties depend on our licensees’ ability to market, produce and ship
products incorporating our technology. Because we expect licensing and royalty revenue to be the
largest source of our future revenue, anything that negatively affects a significant licensee or group of
licensees could negatively affect our results of operations and financial condition. Many issues beyond
our control influence the success of cur licensees, including, for example, the highly competitive
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environment in which they operate, the strength of the markets for their products, their engineering
capabilities and their financial and other resources.

Likewise, we have no control over the product development, pricing and marketing strategies of our
licensees, which directly affect sales of their products and the corresponding royalties payable to us. A
decline in sales of our licensees’ royalty-generating products for any reason would reduce our royalty
revenue. In addition, seasonal and other fluctuations in demand for our licensees’ products could cause
our operating results to fluctuate, which could cause our stock price to fall.

Our embedded memory technology might not integrate as well as anticipated with other semi.-
conductor functions, which would slow or prevent adoption of our technology and reduce our
revenue.

QOur 1T-SRAM technology is new and incorporates a fundamentally different internal circuitry. Our
licensees and we have conducted computer modeling and testing of integrated circuits utilizing our
technology, and we have verified our technology to be operational in standard manufacturing processes
by production and sale of proprietary integrated circuits that incorporate our 1T-SRAM technology, or
1T-SRAM memory chips. Nevertheless, detailed aspects of our technology could cause unforeseen
problems in the efficient integration of our technology with other functions of particular integrated
circuits. Any significant compatibility problems with our technology could reduce the attractiveness of
our solution, impede its acceptance in the industry and result in a decrease in demand for our
technology.

Market acceptance of our 1T-SRAM technology could be slowed or prevented if this technology
presents manufacturing difficulties or contributes to a failure to achieve acceptable yields.

Semiconductor manufacturing yield could be adversely affected by difficulties in adapting our
1T-SRAM technology to our licensees’ product design or to the manufacturing process technology of a
particular foundry or semiconductor manufacturer. Yield problems might not be effectively determined
or resolved until an actual product exists that can be analyzed and tested to identify process sensitivities
relating to the parameters for designing integrated circuit layouts applicable to the targeted semiconduc-
tor fabrication process. We cannot assure you that products utilizing our technology will achieve or
maintain acceptable manufacturing yields. Any weakness in manufacturing yvields of integrated circuits
utilizing our technology could impede the acceptance of our technology in the industry.

Our failure to continue to enhance our technology or develop new technology on a timely basis
could diminish our ability to attract and retain licensees and product customers.

The existing and potential markets for memory products and technology are characterized by ever
increasing performance requirements, evolving industry standards, rapid technological change and
product obsolescence. These characteristics lead to frequent new product and technology introductions
and enhancements, shorter product life cycles and changes in consumer demands. In order to attain and
maintain a significant position in the market, we will need to continue to enhance our technology in
anticipation of these market trends.

In addition, the semiconductor industry might adopt or develop a completely different approach to
utilizing memory for many applications, which could render our existing technology unmarketable or
obsolete. We might not be able to successfully develop new technology, or adapt our existing technology,
to comply with these innovative standards.

Cur future performance depends on a number of factors, including our ability to—
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identify target markets and relevant emerging technological trends, including new standards and
protocols;

o develop and maintain competitive technology by improving performance and adding innovative
features that differentiate our technology from alternative technologies;

o enable the incorporation of enhanced technology in our licensees’ and customers’ products on a
timely basis and at competitive prices; and

e respond effectively to new technological developments or new product introductions by others.
p y g P p y

We cannot assure you that the design and introduction schedules of any additions and enhance-
ments to our existing and future technology will be met, that this technology will achieve market
acceptance or that we will be able to license this technology on terms that are favorable to us. Our failure
to develop future technology that achieves market acceptance could harm our competitive position and
impede our future growth.

We depend substantially on our co-marketers to assist us in attracting potential licensees, and a
loss or failure to increase the number of these relationships could inhibit our growth and reduce
our revenue,

A significant part of our marketing strategy is dependent upon our co-marketing agreements with
foundries and design companies. These co-marketers have existing relationships, and continually seek
new relationships, with companies in the markets we target, and have agreed to utilize these relation-
ships to introduce our technology to potential licensees. If we fail to maintain our current relationships
with these co-marketers, we might fail to achieve anticipated growth.

We have a history of operating losses, and any future profitability is uncertain.

We recorded operating losses in each year from our inception through 1999. We had an accumulated
deficit of $10.8 million as of December 31, 2001. From our inception through 1994, we were engaged
primarily in research and product development. From 1995 through the third quarter of 1998, we
focused on the sale of memory chips. We were profitable in the fourth quarter of 1997 and the first
quarter of 1998 under our product sales business model, but, beginning in the fourth quarter of 1998, we
altered our business plan to concentrate on developing and licensing our 1T-SRAM technology. Prior to
the quarter ended September 30, 2000, we had recorded operating losses in each quarter since our
adoption of this new business plan. We cannot assure you that we will be profitable on a quarterly or
annual basis in the future.

Prior to fiscal 2000, our historical fimancial information does not reflect the recent changes to our
business and strategy.

The historical financial information included in this 10-K does not reflect the many significant
changes in our revenue structure that have occurred as a resuit of changes in our business model. Such
historical financial information also does not reflect changes in our cperations and expense structure
that have resulted from this transition. While we expect to continue to generate revenue from memory
chip sales, in the future we expect licensing and royalty revenue to be a majority of total revenue. The
absence of ample historical financial information could make it more difficult for potential investors to
evaluate the Company and our prospects, and could complicate our efforts to undertake meaningful
financial planning.
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Royalty amoumnts owed to us might be difficult to verify, and we might find it difficult, expensive
and time consuming to enforce our license agreements.

The standard terms of our license agreements require our licensees to document the manufacture
and sale of products that incorporate our technology and report this data to us after the end of each
quarter. We must rely to a large extent upon the accuracy of these reports, as we do not have the capacity
to independently verify this information. Though our standard license terms give us the right to audit the
books and records of any licensee to attempt to verify the information provided to us in these reports, an
audit of a licensee’s records can be expensive and time consuming, and potentially detrimental to the
business relationship. A failure to fully enforce the royalty provisions of our license agreements could
cause our revenue to decrease and impede our ability to maintain profitability.

We expect our revenue to be highly concentrated among a small number of licensees and custom-
ers, and our results of operations could be harmed if we lose and fail to replace this revenue.

We expect that royalty revenue will be highly concentrated among a few licensees for the foreseeable
future. In particular, a substantial portion of our licensing revenue in 2001 has come from the licenses for
integrated circuits to be used by Nintendo in its Gamecube and we expect the same source to represent a
substantial portion of royalty revenue in 2002. Nintendo faces intense competitive pressure in the video
game market, which is characterized by extreme volatility, frequent new product introductions and
rapidly shifting consumer preferences. We cannot assure you that Nintendo’s sales of product incorporat-
ing our technology will increase or remain at current levels and that we will continue to receive
significant royalty revenue from Nintendo.

Our product sales also are highly concentrated. Revenue derived from our two largest customers
represented 21.7% and 18.6% of our total revenue, respectively in 2001. Revenue from our largest
customer represented 26.2% of our total revenue in 2000, while our two largest customers represented
16.4% and 10.9% respectively, of our total revenue in 1999. We expect that a relatively small number of
customers will continue to account for a substantial portion of our product revenue for the foreseeable
future.

As a result of this revenue concentration, our results of operations could be impaired by the decision
of a single key licensee or customer to cease using our technology or products or by a decline in the
number of products that incorporate our technology that are sold by a single licensee or customer or by a
small group of licensees or customers.

Our revenue concentration might pose credit risks, which could negatively affect our cash flow
and financial condition.

We might face credit risks associated with the concentration of our revenue among a small number
of licensees and customers. As of December 31, 2001, two customers accounted for 54% of total
receivables. As of December 31, 2000, two customers accounted for 57% of total receivables. Our failure
to collect receivables from any customer that represents a large percentage of receivables on a timely
basis, or at all, could adversely affect our cash flow or results of operations and might cause our stock
price to fall.

We might not be able to protect and enforce our intellectual property rights, which could impair
our ability to compete and reduce the value of our technology.

Our technology is complex and is intended for use in complicated integrated circuits. A very large
number of new and existing products utilize embedded memory, and a large number of companies
manufacture and market these products. Because of these factors, policing the unauthorized use of our
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intellectual property is difficult and expensive. We cannot be certain that we will be able to detect
unauthorized use of our technology or prevent other parties from designing and marketing unautho-
rized products based on our technology. Although we are not aware of any past or present infringement
of our patents, copyrighis or trademarks, or any viclation of our trade secrets, confidentiality procedures
or licensing agreements, we cannot assure you that the steps taken by us to protect our proprietary
information will be adequate to prevent misappropriation of our technology. Our inability to protect
adequately our intellectual property would reduce significantly the barriers of entry for directly compet-
ing technologies and could reduce the value of our technology. Furthermore, we might initiate claims or
litigation against third parties for infringement of our proprietary rights or to establish the validity of our
proprietary rights. Litigation by us could result in significant expense and divert the efforts of our
technical and management personnel, whether or not such litigation results in 2 determination favorable
to us.

Our existing patemnts might not provide us with sufficient protection of our intellectual property,
and our patent applications might not result in the issuance of patents, either of which could
reduce the value of our core techmnology and harm our business.

We rely on a combination of patents, trademarks, copyrights, trade secret laws and confidentiality
procedures to protect our intellectual property rights. As of December 31, 2001, we held 40 patents in
the United States, which expire at various times from 2011 to 2019, and 20 corresponding foreign
patents. In addition, as of December 31, 2001, we had 17 patent applications pending in the United
States and 19 pending foreign applications, and had received notice of allowance of four of these
pending patent applications in the United States. We cannot assure that any patents will issue from any of
our pending applications or that any claims allowed from pending applications will be of sufficient scope
or strength, or issue in all countries where our products can be sold, to provide meaningful protection or
any commercial advantage to us. Also, competitors might be able to design around our patents. Failure of
our patents or patent applications to provide meaningful protection might allow others to utilize our
technology without any compensation tc us and impair our ability to increase our licensing revenue.

Amy claim that our products or technology infringe third-party intellectual property rights
could increase our costs of operation and distract management and could result in expemsive
settlement costs or the discontinuance of our technology licensing or product offerimgs.

The semiconductor industry is characterized by vigorous protection and pursuit of intellectual
property rights or positions, which has resulted in often protracted and expensive litigation. We are not
aware of any currently pending intellectual property litigation or threatened claim against us. However,
our licensees or we might, from time to time, receive notice of claims that we have infringed patents or
other intellectual property rights owned by others. Litigaticn against us could result in significant
expense and divert the efforts of our technical and management personnel, whether or not the litigation
results in a determination adverse to us. In the event of an adverse result in any such litigation, we could
be required to pay substantial damages, cease the licensing of certain technology or the sale of infringing
products, and expend significant resources to develop non-infringing technology or obtain licenses for
the infringing technology. We cannot assure you that we would be successful in such development or that
such licenses would be available on reasonable terms, or at all.

The discovery of defects in our technology could expose us to liability for damages.

The discovery of a defect in our 1T-SRAM technology could lead our licensees to seek damages from
us. Our standard license terms include provisions waiving implied warranties regarding our technology
and limiting our liability to our licensees. We alsc maintain insurance coverage that is intended to protect
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us against potential liability for defects in our technology. We cannot be certain, however, that the waivers
or limitations of liability contained in our license contracts will be enforceable, that insurance coverage
will continue to be available on reasonable terms or in amounts sufficient to cover one or more large
claims or that our insurer will not disclaim coverage as to any future claim. The successful assertion of
one or more large claims that exceed available insurance coverage or changes in our insurance policies,
including premium increases or the imposition of large deductible or co-insurance requirements, could
cause our expenses to exceed our expectations and consequently harm our profitability.

Qur failure to compete effectively in the market for embedded memaory technology and products
could reduce our revenue.

Competition in the market for embedded memory technology and products is intense. Our licensees
and prospective licensees can meet their need for embedded memory by using traditional memory
solutions with different cost and performance parameters. If alternative technologies are developed that
provide comparable system performance at lower cost than our 1T-SRAM technology or do not require
the payment of comparable royalties, or if the industry generally demonstrates a preference for applica-
tions for which our 1T-SRAM technology does not offer significant advantages, our ability to realize
revenue from our 1T-SRAM technology could be impaired.

We might be challenged by competitive developers of alternative technologies who are more estab-
lished, benefit from greater market recognition and have substantially greater financial, development,
manufacturing and marketing resources than we have. These advantages might permit these developers
to respond more quickly to new or emerging technologies and changes in licensee requirements. We
cannot assure you that future competition will not have a material adverse effect on the adoption of our
technology and our market penetration.

We might be unable to deliver our customized memory technology im the time frame
demanded by our licensees, which could damage our reputation and harm our ability to
attract future licensees.

The majority of our licenses require us to customize our 1T-SRAM technology within a certain
delivery timetable. Not all of the factors relating to this customization are within our control. We cannot
assure you that we will be able to meet the time requirements under these licenses. Any failure to meet
significant license milestones could damage our reputation in the industry and harm our ability to attract
new licensees and could preclude our receipt of licensing fees.

We intend to grow rapidly, and our failure to manage this growth could reduce our potential
revenue and threaten our future profitability.

The efficient management of our planned expansion of the development, licensing and marketing of
our technology will require us to continue to—

° implement and manage new marketing channels to penetrate different and broader markets for
our 1T-SRAM technology;

° manage an increasing number of complex relationships with licensees and co-marketers and their
customers and other third parties;

° improve our operating systems, procedures and financial controls on a timely basis;
° hire additional key management and technical personnel; and

° expand, train and manage our workforce and, in particular, our development, sales, marketing
and support organizations.
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We cannot assure you that we will adequately manage our growth or meet the foregoing objectives. A
failure to do so could jeopardize our future revenues and cause our stock price to fall.

If we fail to retain key personnel, our business and growth could be negatively affected.

Our business has been dependent to a significant degree upon the services of a small number of
executive officers and technical employees, inciuding Dr. Fu-Chieh Hsu, our Chairman of the Board,
President and Chief Executive Officer, and Dr. Wingyu Leung, our Executive Vice President and Chief
Technical Officer. The loss of their services could negatively impact our technoclogy development efforts
and our ability to perform our existing agreements and obtain new customers. We generally have not
entered into employment or non-competition agreements with any of our employees and do not
maintain key-man life insurance on the lives of any of our key personnel.

We derive a significant amount of our revenue from sales of our proprietary integrated
circuits and a decline in demand for these products could reduce our revenue substamtially.

Product revenues since 1998, when we changed our business strategy, have represented 58%, 90%
and 100% of our total revenues for 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. Qur product revenues fell from
$4.7 million in the quarter ended December 31, 2000 to $3.2 million in the quarter ended December 31,
2001. The decline reflects a general weakness in demand for our customers’ products and a correspond-
ing inventory correction that resulted in reduced purchases of our memory chips. We cannot assure you
that cur customers will increase their orders in future periods. We cannot assure you that our memory
chips will perform the desired functions, will operate reliably on a long-term basis or otherwise will be
technically successful, or that we will be able to obtain adequate quantities of these products at commer-
cially acceptable costs or on a timely basis.

A decline im the average selling prices of our memory chips could reduce our product
revenue and gross profit.

As has been typical in the semiconductor industry, we expect that the average unit selling prices of
our memory chips will decline over the course of their commercial lives, principally due to the supply of
competing products, falling demand from customers and product cycle changes. We experienced a
significant decline in average selling prices for our primary memory chip from 1997 to 1998, with a
corresponding decline in gross margin for that product. Declining average selling prices will adversely
affect gross margins from the sale of our memory chips. We might not be able to adjust our costs rapidly
or deeply enough to offset the pricing declines and, as a conseguence, our product revenue and profit
margins could fall.

We obtain the manufacture, assembly and testing of our products from third parties that we
do not control and a loss of these services could harm our licensing business and decrease
our product revenue.

We are a fabless semiconductor company, and currently rely on Taiwan Semiconductor Manufactur-
ing Co., Ltd., or TSMC, for the manufacture of all of our memory chips. We presently do not have a firm,
written agreement with TSMC or any other semiconductor foundry that guarantees the fabrication of our
memory chips. As a result, we cannct assure you that we will always be able to obtain these products in
sufficient numbers and on a timely basis to meet our sales objectives. A failure to ensure the timely
fabrication of our products could cause us to lose customers and could have a material adverse effect on
our profits. If TSMC ceases to provide us with required production capacity with respect to our memory
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chips, we cannot assure you that we will be able to enter into manufacturing arrangements with other
foundries on commercially reasonable terms, or that these arrangements, if established, will result in the
successful manufacturing of our products. These arrangements might require us to share control over
our manufacturing process technologies or to relinquish rights to our technology and might be subject to
unilateral termination by the foundries. Even if such capacity is available from another manufacturer, we
would need to qualify the manufacturer, which process could take six months or longer. We cannot
assure you that we would be able to identify or qualify manufacturing sources that would be able to
produce wafers with acceptable manufacturing yields.

All of our semiconductor memory chip products are assembled and tested by third-party vendors,
primarily in Taiwan. Our reliance on independent assembly and testing vendors involves a number of
risks, including reduced control over delivery schedules, quality assurance and costs. The inability of
these third-party contractors to deliver products of acceptable quality and in a timely manner could result
in the loss of customers and a reduction in our product revenue.

Our marketing efforts with respect to licensing our 1T-SRAM technology include the use of our
1T-SRAM memory chips to demonstrate the performance and manufacturability of the underlying tech-
nology and to facilitate acceptance of our technology by potential licensees. A loss of foundry capacity,
assembly services or testing services for our memory chips, or any other failure to produce our 1T-SRAM
memory chips, could materially impair our ability to market our technology to potential licensees and
reduce our revenue.

The volatility of and uncertainties inherent in the semiconductor industry may make it
difficult to plan cur memory chip business and could cause our results of operations to
fluctuate substantially.

In the past, we have generally experienced significant fluctuations in our operating results due to
significant economic downturns in the semiconductor industry. Specifically, in 1998 and again in late
2000, product demand fell, prices eroded and inventory levels fluctuated. Our ability to sell memory
chips has also been hampered by alternating periods of manufacturing over-capacity and capacity
constraints. Any recurrence of these conditions could cause us to experience substantial
period-to-period fluctuations in revenues and costs associated with our memory chip business.

QOur failure to successfully address the potential difficulties associated with our international
operations could increase our costs of operation and negatively impact our revenue.

We are subject to many difficulties posed by doing business internationally, including—

° foreign currency exchange fluctuations;

° unanticipated changes in local regulation;

o potentially adverse tax consequences, such as withholding taxes;

¢ difficulties regarding timing and availability of export and import licenses;

o political and economic instability; and

o reduced or limited protection of our intellectual property.

Because we anticipate that licenses to companies that operate primarily outside the United States
will account for a substantial portion of our licensing revenue in future periods, the occurrence of any of
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these circumstances could significantly increase our costs of operation, delay the timing of our revenue
and harm our profitability.

Provisions of our certificate of incorporation and bylaws or Delaware law might delay or
prevent a change of control transaction and depress the market price of ocur stock.

Various provisions of our certificate of incorporation and bylaws might have the effect of making it
more difficult for a third party to acquire, or discouraging a third party from attempting to acquire,
control of our company. These provisions could limit the price that certain investors might be wikling to
pay in the future for shares of our common stock. Certain of these provisions eliminate cumulative voting
in the election of directors, limit the right of stockholders to call special meetings and establish specific
procedures for director nominations by stockholders and the submission of other proposals for consid-
eration at stockholder meetings.

We are also subject to provisions of Delaware law which could delay or make more difficult a merger,
tender offer or proxy contest involving cur company. In particular, Section 203 of the Delaware General
Corporation Law prohibits a Delaware corporation from engaging in any business combination with any
interested stockholder for a period of three years unless specific conditions are met. Any of these
provisions could have the effect of delaying, deferring or preventing a change in control, including
without limitation, discouraging a proxy contest or making more difficult the acquisition of a substantial
block of our common stock.

Our board of directors may issue up tc 20,000,000 shares of preferred stock without stockholder
approval on such terms as the board might determine. The rights of the holders of common stock will be
subject to, and might be adversely affected by, the rights of the holders of any preferred stock that might
be issued in the future.

Our stockholder rights plan could prevent stockholders from receiving a premium over the
market price for their shares from a potemtial acquiror.

We have adopted a stockholder rights plan, which entitles our stockholders to rights to acquire
additional shares of our common stock generally when a third party acquires 15% of our common stock
of commences or announces its intent to commence a tender offer for at least 15% of our common stock.
This plan could delay, deter or prevent an investor from acquiring us in a transaction that could otherwise
result in stockholders receiving a premium over the market price for their shares of common stock.

A limited number of stockholders will have the ability to influence the outcome of director
elections and other matters requiring stockholder approval.

Our executive officers, directors and entities affiliated with them, in the aggregate, beneficially own
approximately 40% of our common stock. These stockholders acting together have the ability to exert
substantial influence over all matters requiring the approval of our stockholders, including the election
and removal of directors and any proposed acquisition, consolidation or sale of all or substantially all of
our assets. In addition, they could dictate the management of our business and affairs. This concentration
of ownership could have the effect of delaying, deferring or preventing a change in control, or impeding
an acquisition, consolidation, takeover or other business combination, which might otherwise involve
the payment of a premium for your shares of our common stock.
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Any acquisitions we make could disrupt our business and harm our financial condition.

As part of our growth strategy, we might consider opportunities to acquire other businesses or
technologies that would complement our current offerings, expand the breadth of our markets or
enhance our technical capabilities. To date, we have not made any acquisitions, and we are currently not
subject to any agreement or letter of intent with respect to potential acquisitions. Acquisitions present a
number of potential challenges that could, if not overcome, disrupt our business operations, increase
our operating costs and reduce the value to us of the acquired company, including—

¢ integration of the acquired employees, operations, technologies and products with our existing
business and products;

° focusing management’s time and attention on our core business;

° retention of business relationships with suppliers and customers of the acquired company;

° entering markets in which we lack prior experience; and

° retention of key employees of the acquired company.

Potemtial volatility of the price of our common stock could negatively affect your investmenmnt.

We cannot assure you that there will continue to be an active trading market for our common stock.
Recently, the stock market, as well as our common stock, has experienced significant price and volume
fluctuations. Market prices of securities of technology companies have been highly volatile and fre-
quently reach levels that bear no relationship to the operating performance of such companies. These
market prices generally are not sustainable and are subject to wide variations. If our common stock
trades to unsustainably high levels, it is likely that the market price of our common stock will thereafter
experience a material decline.

In the past, securities class action litigation has often been brought against a company following
periods of volatility in the market price of its securities. We could be the target of similar litigation in the
future. Securities litigation could cause us to incur substantial costs, divert management’s attention and
resources, harm our reputation in the industry and the securities markets and reduce our profitability.

The price of our stock could decrease as a result of shares being sold in the market after our
imitial public offering.

Sales of a substantial number of shares of common stock in the public market could adversely affect
the market price of the common stock prevailing from time to time. The number of shares of our
common stock available for sale in the public market is limited by restrictions under the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, or the Securities Act, but taking into account sales of stock made in accordance with
the provisions of Rules 144(k), 144 and 701, substantially all the shares of common stock currently
outstanding are eligible for sale in the public market.

Dr. Fu-Chieh Hsu, our Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer, Dr. Wingyu
Leung, our Executive Vice President and Chief Technical Officer and Mark Eric Jones, our Vice President
and General Manager each entered into a plan for selling a portion of their shares of common stock in the
manner described under Rule 10b5-1 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Each plan is
non-discretionary and is administered by an independent brokerage firm. Plans for Drs. Hsu and Leung
provide for the automatic sale of shares of common stock in 10,000 share blocks twice each week
between January 28, 2002 and July 31, 2002. Mr. Jones’ plan provides for automatic weekly sales that vary
from 2,000 to 10,000 shares per week between February 21, 2002 and February 28, 2003, depending on
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the market price of our stock. Sales of the shares are further subject to the volume restrictions set forth in
SEC Rule 144(e). Each plan provides for termination upon the completion of the specified trading
program, the instruction of the stockholder, or the occurrence of other specified events, whichever is
earliest. Under his plan, Dr. Hsu intended to sell 540,000 shares. Dr. Leung intended to sell 520,000
shares under his plan. All of the shares are sold through broker-dealers in ordinary market transactions.
Dr. Hsu cancelled his plan on February 25, 2002 after 90,000 shares were scld in late January and
February of 2002. Dr. Leung’s and Mr. Jones’ plans remain in effect.

Executive Officers

The following table sets forth certain information concerning the directors and executive officers of
our company as of December 31, 2001.

Name Age Position

Fu-Chieh Hsu........................ 45 Chairman of the Board, President and Chief
Executive Officer

Wingyu Leung .. ......... . ... ........ 47  Executive Vice President and Chief Technical
Officer and Director

Mark-Eric Jones . .. ................... 46  Vice President and General Manager—
Intellectual Property

F. Judson Mitchell .. ... ... ... ........ 65 Vice President, Finance & Administration,
Chief Financial Officer and Secretary

Andre Hassan . ...................... 42 Vice President and General Manager—Discrete
Products

Fu-Chieb Hsu. Dr. Hsu has served as our Chairman of the Board since September 1991 and as our
President and Chief Executive Officer since April 1992. Dr. Hsu also served as our Chief Financial Officer
from April 1992 until May 1996. Prior to joining our company, Dr. Hsu was the President and Chairman of
the Board of Myson Technology, Inc., a developer of high performance semiconductor products from
August 1990 to August 1991. From May 1985 to August 1990, Dr. Hsu served as Vice President and Chief
Technology Officer of Integrated Device Technology, Inc., a developer of high performance semiconduc-
tor products and modules. Dr. Hsu holds a B.S. in electrical engineering from National Taiwan University
and an M.S. and a Ph.D. in electrical engineering from the University of California at Berkeley.

Wingyu Leung. Dr. Leung has served as our Vice President, Engineering and Chief Technical Officer
and as a member of our board of directors since April 1992. Dr. Leung also served as our Secretary from
April 1992 until May 1996 and again from May 1997 until August 2000. Prior to joining our company,
Dr. Leung served as a technology consultant to several high technology companies, including
Rambus, Inc., or Rambus, a developer of a high-speed chip-to-chip interface technology. Prior to that
time, Dr. Leung served as a member of the technical staff of Rambus, and as a senicr engineering manager
at Integrated Device Technology, Inc., where he managed and participated in circuit design activities.
Dr. Leung holds a B.S. in electrical engineering from the University of Maryland, an M.S. in electrical
engineering from the University of Illinois and a Ph.D. in electrical engineering and computer science
from the University of California at Berkeley.

Mark-Eric Jones. Mr. Jones has served as our Vice President and General Manager—Intellectual
Property since October 1998. Prior to joining our company, Mr. Jones served as Director, Intellectual
Property Division of Mentor Graphics Corporation, a developer of EDA tools and provider of intellectual
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property from January 1996 to September 1998. Mr. Jones founded 3SOFT, Inc., a developer of intellec-
tual property and served as its President and Chief Executive Officer from May 1976 to january 1996.
Mr. Jones holds a M.A. from Trinity College, University of Cambridge, United Kingdom.

E Judson Mitchell Mr. Mitchell has served as our Vice President of Finance and Administration and
Chief Financial Officer since July 2000, and was appointed Secretary in August 2000. Prior to joining our
company, Mr. Mitchell served as Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Wavespan, Inc., a manufac-
turer of microwave radio links from November 1997 until December 1999. Prior to that time, Mr. Mitchell
served as a financial consultant to high technology companies. Mr. Mitchell also served as Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer of the DSP Group from August 1993 until September 1995. Mr. Mitchell has
also served as Chief Financial Officer of Adaptec, Inc., IXYS Corporation and Finnigan Corporation.
Mr. Mitchell holds a B.S. in Mechanical Engineering and an A.B. in Liberal Arts from Columbia College in
New York and an M.B.A. from the Stanford Graduate School of Business.

Andre Hassan. Mr. Hassan has served as our Vice President and General Manager—Discrete
Products since July 2001. Prior to this, Mr. Hassan was General Manager—Discrete Products from
January 1999 to June 2001. Mr. Hassan was Director of Marketing from February 1996 to December 1998.
Prior to joining our company, Mr. Hassan served as Strategic Marketing Manager for $3, Inc., a developer
of semiconductor multimedia products from June 1994 to January 1996. Mr. Hassan holds a B.S. in
electrical engineering from Worcester Polytechnic Institute.

Item 2. Properties

Our principal administrative, sales, marketing, support and research and development functions are
located in a leased facility in Sunnyvale, California. We currently occupy approximately 19,500 square
feet of space in the Sunnyvale facility, the lease for which extends through June 2005. We hold an option
to extend our lease for three additional years. We have leased approximately 1,400 square feet of space in
Seoul, South Korea for our engineering design center. We believe that our existing facilities are adequate
to meet our current needs.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

From time to time we may be subject to legal proceedings and claims in the ordinary course of
business. These claims, even if not meritorious, could result in the expenditure of significant financial
and managerial resources. We are not aware of any legal proceedings or claims that we believe could
harm our business or cause our revenues or stock price to fall.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

No matter was submitted to a vote of stockholders during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year
covered by this report. We did not hold an annual meeting of stockholders in 2001. The 2002 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders will be held at 9:30 a.m., local time, on Thursday, May 9, 2002, at Company’s
principal executive office located at 1020 Stewart Drive, Sunnyvale, California 94085.

27




Part II
ITrem 5. Mavket for Registrant’s Commaon Equity and Related Stockbolder Matters

Our common stock is quoted on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol MOSY. The following
table sets forth the range of high and low closing sales prices of our common stock for each period
indicated.

Quarter ending High Low
December 31, 2001 ... ... . ... $20.88 $7.80
September 28, 2001 . ... .. . .. .. $14.98 $7.64

The Company had 129 shareholders of record as of February 28, 2002. The Company has not
declared or paid any cash dividends on its common stock and presently intends to retain its future
earnings, if any, to fund the development and growth of its business and, therefore, does not anticipate
paying any cash dividends in the foreseeable future. Information regarding the issuance of securities
upon the exercise of warrants and stock options by the Company without registration under the
Securities Act of 1933 in 2001 is incorporated by reference from Part IV, Item 14, (a) (1) “Notes to
Financial Statements—Note 6 Stockholders’ Equity”.

Other Information

The Securities and Exchange Commission declared the Company’s first registration statement, filed
on Form S-1 under the Securities Act of 1933 (File No. 333-43122) relating to the Company’s initial public
offering of its common stock, effective on June 27, 2001. The Company sold a total of 5,750,000 shares of
its common stock tc an underwriting syndicate; 750,000 of these shares were sold pursuant to the
managing underwriters’ exercise of an over-allotment option on July 9, 2001. The managing underwrit-
ers were A.G. Edwards & Sons, Inc. and Needham & Company, Inc. The Company commenced the initial
offering for 5,000,000 shares of its common stock on June 28, 2001, at an initial public offering price of
$10.00 per share. The offering was completed on July 3, 2001. The Company commenced and completed
the offering for 750,000 shares of its common stock, pursuant to the managing underwriters’ exercise of
the over-allotment option, on July 9, 2001, at $10.00 per share, at which time the offering terminated.
The initial public offering resulted in aggregate gross proceeds of $57,500,000, §4,025,000 of which was
applied to the underwriting discount and approximately $1,921,000 of which was applied to related
expenses. As a result, the Company realized approximately $51,554,000 after offering expenses. To date,
the Company has not used any of the net proceeds of the IPO. Following the completion of the
Company’s IPO, all series of the Company’s issued and outstanding preferred stock, par value $0.01,
converted automatically into 12,731,446 shares of our common stock with a par value of $0.01 per share.

Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following selected financial data presented below are derived from our consolidated financial
statements. The selected financial data should be read in conjunction with our financial statements and
notes related to those statements, and with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condi-
- tion and Results of Operations’ included herein.
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Statement of Operations Data:
Net revenue:
Product
Licensing
Royalty . . ... ... ... ...

Cost of net revenue:
Product ... ... ... . ... ... ...
Licensing

Grossprofit . . .. ... ... .. ...

Operating expenses:
Research and development . ....... ...
Selling, general and administrative
Stock-based compensation charge

Total operating expenses

Income (loss) from operations

Interest expense . . . .. ... .. ... ... ..
Interest and other income

Income (loss) before income taxes
Provision for income taxes

Netincome (loss). ... ................

Net income (loss) per share—basic

—diluted. . . . ..

Shares used in computing net income (loss)
per share

—basic......... ...

—dilated . ... ..o

* Allocation of stock-based compensation to
operating expenses:
Research and development ... ........
Selling, general and administrative

Year ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
(in thousands, except per share data)

$12,991 § 12893 8§ 15356 § 36,281 § 34,822
6,053 1,440 — — —
3,446 10 — — —
22,490 14,343 15,356 36,281 34,822
5,776 5,388 10,062 31,892 29,510
633 517 — — —
6,409 5,905 10,062 31,892 29,510
16,081 8,438 5,294 4,389 5,312
4,420 3,341 3,110 4,224 3,596
4,686 3,523 2,388 2,842 3,225
1,435 1,085 107 — —
10,541 7,949 5,605 7,066 6,821
5,540 489 (B11) (2,677  (1,509)
— — — (294)  (1,030)
1,818 1,149 520 649 523
7,358 1,638 209 (2,322)  (2,016)
(367) (308) (67) — —
$ 6991 $ 1,330 $ 142 $§ (2,322) $ (2,016)
$ 035 $ 013 § 001 § (0.24) $ (0.22)
$ 025 $ 005 8 001 $ (024 $ (0.22)
19,709 10,013 9,727 9,626 9,323
28,390 25,624 23,320 9,626 9,323
$ 781 § 574 8 56 — —
654 511 51 — —
$ 1435 $ 1,085 $ 107 $ — 3 —
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December 31,

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997

Balance Sheet Data:
Cash, cash equivalents and short-term

INVESEMENtS . . .. ... ... ... $84,293 $ 23,397 § 12,720 § 9,750 & 9,091
Working capital ... ............... ... 82,343 20,733 11,908 11,387 3,677
Total assets . ............... .c.c...... 89,461 29,798 16,481 17,932 49,408
Deferred revenue . . ... ... . ... ... ... .. 3,283 5,973 2,045 — —_
Current portion of notes payable ........ — — — — 7,773
Notes payable, long-term ... ........... — — — — 22,540
Mandatorily redeemable convertible

preferred stock . .. ... ... . L — 35,591 30,391 30,391 22,330
Stockholders’ equity (deficit) . . .. ... ... .. 84,104  (13,852) (17,666) (18,001) (15,903)

ftem 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations

This Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
should be read in conjunction with the accompanying consolidated financial statements and notes
included in this report.

Overview

We design, develop, license and market memory technologies used by the semiconductor industry
and electronic product manufacturers. We have developed a patented semiconductor memory technol-
ogy, called 1T-SRAM, that offers a combination of high density, low power consumption, high speed and
low cost that other available memory technologies do not match. We license this technology tc compa-
nies that incorporate, or embed, memory on complex integrated circuits. We also sell memory chips
based on our 1T-SRAM technology. The sale of our 1T-SRAM memory chips supports the future develop-
ment and marketing of our 1T-SRAM technology to licensees.

Until the second quarter of 2001, aimost all of our revenue was generated by product sales of
memory chips from four product lines, 1T-SRAM, MDRAM, MCACHE and SGRAM. Sales of our memory
chips peaked at $36.3 million in 1998. We achieved profitability in the fourth quarter of 1997 and the first
quarter of 1998. In the second quarter of 1998, unit prices and shipments into the personal computer
market declined dramatically. At that time we decided that the combination of strong competition for
personal computer memory chips, volatile pricing and low margins would limit the profitability of chip
sales in the long run. Consequently, using elements of our existing memory technology as a foundation,
we completed the development of our 1T-SRAM technology in the fourth quarter of 1998 and changed
our primary focus to licensing this memory technology.

Also in 1998, we completed development of our first memory chips incorporating our 1T-SRAM
technology and changed our marketing strategy for memory chips to focus on selling 1T-SRAM memory
chips to customers in the communications equipment business. At the same time, we began to phase out
our three other product lines. We ceased shipping MCACHE in early 1999. By the end of the second
quarter of 2000, we had ceased production of MDRAM chips, which we presently sell in [imited amounts
from remaining inventory. We presently ship SGRAM chips in low volumes from remaining inventory only
to support small orders from existing customers. Consequently, we anticipate that virtually all of our
future product revenue will derive from sales of 1T-SRAM memory chips, which represented 91% of
product revenue in 2001.
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After changing our business model, we signed our first license agreement related to 1T-SRAM
technology at the end of the fourth quarter of 1998 and recognized licensing revenue from our 1T-SRAM
technology for the first time in the first quarter of 2000. As of December 31, 2001, we had signed
agreements related to our 1T-SRAM technology with 26 companies. Generally, we expect our total sales
cycle, or the period from our initial discussion with a prospective licensee to our receipt of royalties from
the licensee’s use of our 1T-SRAM technology, to run from 18 to 24 months.

In July 2001, we completed the sale of a total of 5,750,000 shares of common stock at $10 per share
in our initial public offering. We realized total net proceeds of approximately $51.6 million from the
offering. We have had a limited operating history and incurred net losses in every year of operation until
1999.

We believe that quarterly and annual results of operations will be affected by a variety of factors that
could materially and adversely affect revenue, gross profit and income from operations. Accordingly, and
in light of our limited operating history under our new business model, we believe that period-to-period
comparisons of our results of operations should not be relied upon as an indication of future
performance.

Revenue. We generate three types of revenue: licensing, royalty and product revenue. Prior to
2001, almost all of our revenue was product revenue from the sale of memory chips. Since the beginning
of 2001, product revenue as a percentage of total revenue has declined each quarter while the percentage
of our license and royalty revenues has grown each quarter. In the third quarter of 2001, for the first time,
combined license and royalty revenue exceeded product revenue. We anticipate this trend will continue
in 2002. Currently, we anticipate further decline in product revenue in 2002 and increases in licensing
and royalty revenues, which will represent an increasing proportion of our total revenue in 2002. Our
future revenue results are subject to a number of factors, however, particularly those described in Part L.,
Item I, “Business—Risk Factors”.

Our licensing revenue consists of fees for providing circuit design, layout and design verification
support to a licensee that is embedding our memory technology into its product. For some licensees, we
also provide engineering support services to assist commencement of production of their products. We
recognized licensing revenue for the first time in the first quarter of 2000. Licensing fees range from
several hundred thousand dollars to several million dollars, depending on the scope and complexity of
the development project, the licensee’s rights and the royalty to be paid under the agreement. The
licensee generally pays licensing fees in installments at the beginning of the license and upon achieving
certain milestones. All contracts entered into to date require us to meet performance specifications. For
contracts involving performance specifications that we have not met and we do not have the historical
experience to reasonably estimate the costs, we defer the recognition of revenue until the licensee
manufactures products that meet the contract performance specifications and recognize revenue using
the completed contract method. However, if the contracts involve performance specifications that we
have significant experience in meeting and the cost of contract can be reasonably estimated, we recog-
nize revenue over the period in which the contract services are performed using the percentage of
completion method. Labor costs incurred are used as a measure of progress towards completion. Fees
collected prior to revenue recognition are recorded as deferred contract revenue.

Each licensing agreement provides for royalty payments at a stated rate. We negotiate royalty rates by
taking into account such factors as the amount of licensing fees to be paid, the anticipated volume of the
licensee’s sales of products that utilize our technology and the cost savings to be achieved by the licensee
when using our technology. Cur agreements require licensees to report the manufacture or sale of
products that include our technology after the end of the quarter in which the sale or manufacture
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occurs. We generally recognize royalties in the guarter in which we receive the licensee’s report. We
recorded our first royalty revenue in the quarter ended December 31, 2000.

We anticipate that licensing revenue will fluctuate from period to period and that it will be difficult to
predict the timing and magnitude of such revenue. Our license agreements involve long sales cycles,
which make it difficult to predict the timing of signing agreements. These agreements are also associated
with lengthy and complicated engineering development projects, and so the completion of development
and commencement of production may be difficult for us to predict. We believe that the amount of
licensing revenues for any period is not necessarily indicative of results for any future period.

The timing and level of royalties will likewise be difficult to predict because they are totally depen-
dent on the licensees’ ability tc market, produce and ship product that incorporates our technology.
Under our licensing business model, our future revenue will be tied to royalties on the production and
sale of our licensees’ products. Many of these products are consumer products, such as electronic games,
for which demand is seasonal and generally highest in the fourth quarter, which we would report in the
first quarter of the following year. For a discussion of factors that could contribute to the fluctuation of
our revenues, please see Part I., Item 1, “Business—Risk Factors—OQur lengthy licensing cycle and our
licensees’ lengthy development cycles will make the operating results of our licensing business difficult
to predict.”

Product sales are typically on a purchase-order basis, with shipment of product from one to six
months later. Provisions for estimated returns and to a lesser degree potential warranty liability are
recorded at the time revenue is recognized.

Currently, Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Co., Ltd., or TSMC, manufactures all of the mem-
ory chips that we sell. Our products are assembled and tested prior to shipment by independent, third-
party contractors. We contract for all of these manufacturing services on a purchase-order basis and have
no long-term commitments for the supply of any of our memory chip products. If we are unable to obtain
manufacturing, assembly or testing services required to fill our customer orders for these products, cur
revenues from these products will decline substantially.

Cur memory chips are subject to competitive pricing pressure that might result in fluctuating gross
profits, which we have experienced in the past. Prior to 1999, we sold most of our memory chips to the
personal computer market, which is seasonal, and experienced the strongest demand for these products
in the fourth quarter each year. From late 1998 to date, our memory chip sales have consisted primarily of
1T-SRAM chips sold to customers in the communications equipment business and we have not seen the
effect of seasonal demand in the market.

The semiconductor industry is currently experiencing a difficuit economic environment and down-
turn. Most of our memory chip sales are made to communications equipment manufacturers, which
experienced a sharp economic downturn in 2001. We have limited visibility of our customer’s chip
requirements in 2002 and anticipate further declines in product revenue.

A few customers account for a significant percentage of our total revenue. For the year ended
December 31, 2001, our two largest customers, Cisco Systems, Inc. and NEC represented 21.7% and
18.6% of total revenue, respectively. In 2000, our largest customer was Cisco Systems, which represented
26.2% of our total revenue for the year. No other customer accounted for more than 10% of our revenue
that vear. In 1999, our two largest customers, ETMA Corporation and Maxtek Technology Company, Ltd.,
represented 16.4% and 10.9% of our total revenue, respectively. For information regarding revenues
received by us in 2001, 2000 and 1999 from customers residing in the United States or residing in a
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foreign country, please refer to note 8, “Segment Information,” of Notes to Consolidated Financial

Statements. All of our sales are denominated in U.S. dollars.

Cost of Revenue. Cost of product revenue consists primarily of costs associated with the manufac-
ture, assembly and testing of our memory chip products by independent, third-party contractors.

Cost of licensing revenue consists primarily of engineering costs directly related to engineering
development projects specified in agreements we have with licensees of our 1T-SRAM technology. These
projects typically include customization of 1T-SRAM circuitry to enable embedding our memory on a
licensee’s integrated circuit and may include engineering support to assist in the commencement of
production of a licensee’s products. If licensing revenue is recognized using percentage of completion
methaod, the associated cost of licensing revenue is recognized in the period the engineering expense is
incurred. If licensing revenue is recognized using completed contract method and to the extent that the
amount of engineering costs does not exceed the amount of the related licensing revenues, these costs
are deferred on a contract-by-contract basis from the time we have established technological feasibility of
the product to be developed under the license. Technological feasibility is established when we have
completed all of the activities necessary to demonstrate that the licensee’s product can be produced to
meet the performance specifications when incorporating our technology. Deferred costs are charged to
cost of licensing revenue when the related revenue is recognized. There are no reported costs associated
with royalty revenue.

Research and Development. Research and development expenses consist primarily of salaries and
related employee expenses, material costs for prototype and test units and expenses associated with
engineering development software and equipment. Prior to 1998, our research and development
expenses were incurred primarily in support of the design, development and production of memory
chips.

Since changing our business model in 1998, we have devoted our research and development efforts
primarily to developing the 1T-SRAM technology and related licensing activities. Some of these efforts
have been directly related to projects specified in various license agreements we have with the early
adopters of our memory technology. Research and development expenses can also include development
and design of variations of the 1T-SRAM technology for use in different manufacturing processes used by
licensees and the development and testing of prototypes to prove the technical feasibility of embedding
our memory designs in the licensees’ products.

We generally record engineering cost as research and development expense in the period incurred,
except when the engineering cost is being deferred under a licensing agreement for which technological
feasibility has been established.

We intend to focus an increasing percentage of our research and development efforts on the
development of new intellectual property for licensing to semiconductor companies, electronic product
manufacturers and their customers. The success of our business will depend on our ability to develop
these new technologies.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. Selling, general and administrative expenses con-
sist primarily of employee-related expenses, occupancy costs, sales commissions to independent sales
representatives and professional fees. We pay commissions to our independent sales representatives on
most of our sales of memory chips. We leverage our licensing and co-marketing relationships to promote
our technology. We have engaged one sales representative in Japan, who receives a commission on
licensing revenue generated from licensees identified to us by the representative.




Lease Commitments and Off Balance Sheet Financing

The Company leases its corporate headquarters and is obligated to make future minimum lease
payments of $818,000, $859,000, $902,000 and $462,000, in 2002, 2003, 2004, and 2005 respectively.
The Company has no off balance sheet financing.

Critical Accounting Policies

QOur discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operation are based upon our
consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. The preparation of these financial statements requires
us to make certain estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenses. On an ongoing basis we make these estimates based on our historical experience
and on assumptions that we consider reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from
these estimates, and reported results could differ under different assumptions or conditions.

We believe that our revenue recognition and inventory valuation accounting policies are affected by
estimates and judgments in the following manner:

Revenue. Ifalicensing contract involves performance specifications that we have significant experi-
ence in meeting, we recognize the revenue over the period in which the contract services are performed
using the percentage of completion method. We follow this method because we can obtain reasonably
dependable estimates of the costs to perform the contracted services. During the contract performance
period we review estimates of cost to complete the contracts as the contract progresses to completion
and will revise our estimates of revenue and gross profit under the contract if we revise the estimations of
the cost to complete. Our policy is to reflect any revision in the contract gross profit estimate in reported
income for the period in which the facts giving rise to the revision become known.

Inventory. We state inventories at the lower of cost, determined using the first-in, first-out method,
or market. Our policy is to write down our inventory for estimated obsolescence or unmarketable
inventory to the extent the cost exceeds the estimated market value. We base the estimate on our
assumptions about future demand and market conditions. If actual market conditions are less favorable
than those assumed in our estimates, additional inventory write-downs may be required. Cur policy is to
reflect any revaluation of inventory in reported income for the period in which the facts giving rise to the
inventory revaluation become known.
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Results of Operations

The table set forth below shows our results of operations for the past three years, expressed as a
percentage of revenue.

Year ended
December 31,

2001 2000 1999

Net revenue:

Product . ... ... 57.8% 89.9% 100.0%
Licensing. . . .. ... ... 269 100 —
Rovalty . . . . . 15.3 0.1 —

100.0 100.0 100.0

Cost of net revenue:

Product . ... ... 257 376 655
Licensing . . .. ... .. 2.8 3.6 —
28.5 41.2 65.5
Gross profit . . . . . 715 588 345
Operating expenses:
Research and development .. ... ........ ... ... ... ... .. .. ... 19.7 232 203
Selling, general and administrative . . . . ........ .. ... ... .. . ... 208 246 155
Stock-based compensation charge . .......... ... .. ... ... ... ... 6.4 7.6 0.7
Total operating eXpenses . . ... ........ ... 469 554 365
Income (loss) from operations .. ................ .. . .. .. .. .. ..., 24.6 3.4 2.0
Interest and other income . . ... ... ... ... L e 8.1 8.0 3.4
Provision for income taxes . .. ........ . ... . . (1.6) 21) (04
Netincome . ... ... .. 31.1%  9.3% 1.0%

Years Ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999

Revenue. In 2001, total revenue increased 57% over the previous year to $22.5 million due to the
strong growth of our licensing revenue, which increased to $6.1 million and our royalty revenue, which
increased to $3.4 million. Most of the 2001 licensing and royalty revenue consisted of our engineering
activities associated with NEC’s development of chips for the Nintendo Gamecube video game console
and royalties earned from the subsequent production of Gamecube chips incorporating our 1T-SRAM
technology. Gamecube-related revenue represented 22.9% of total revenue in 2001. We also earned
licensing revenue from a number of smaller development projects for other licensees, and royalty
revenue from communication chips manufactured by Broadcom and Galileo. Revenue decreased from
$15.4 million in 1999 to $14.3 million in 2000 primarily because sales of SGRAM memory chips declined
substantially as we continued our phase-out of this product. The decline was largely offset in 2000 by a
$6.1 million increase in the sale of 1T-SRAM memory chips and the recognition of our first 1T-SRAM
technology licensing revenue, which totaled $1.4 million.

During the three-year period 2001, 2000 and 1999 product sales were $13.0 million, $12.9 million
and $15.4 million, respectively. Sales of memory chips represented all our revenue in 1999 but declined
to 89.9% of 2000 revenue and 57.8% of 2001 revenue as we shifted our primary focus from product sales
to the licensing of our 1T-SRAM technology. Also during the same three-year period, sales of memory
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chips based on our 1T-SRAM technology were $11.8 million in 2001, $9.9 million in 2000 and $3.8 mil-
lion in 1999. The increase in 1T-SRAM chip revenue occurred as we phased out the SGRAM and MDRAM
product lines and focused our product sales and marketing on manufacturers of communications
equipment.

While preduct revenue increased slightly in 2001 compared to 2000, we have recorded significant
declines in quarterly product revenue during 2001 because of the weakness in the communications
equipment market, which is our primary market for memory chips. We expect additional declines in
product revenue in 2002 and do not anticipate increases until there is a recovery in the communication
equipment sector of the economy.

Gross Profit.  In 2001, gross profit increased to $16.1 million due to strong growth of licensing and
royalty revenues, which contributed $8.9 million to gross profit for the year. Gross profit as a percentage
of total revenue increased to 71.5% in 2001 due to the significantly higher proportion of licensing and
royalty revenues, which have much higher gross profit margins than product revenues. In 2001, licensing
gross profit as a percentage of licensing revenue was 90% and royalty gross profit as a percentage of
royalty revenue was 100%. Gross profit increased from $5.3 million in 1999 to $8.4 million in 2000
primarily due to our decision to shift our focus to the sale of 1T-SRAM memory chips to communications
equipment manufacturers. This resulted in lower unit shipments of memory chips but higher selling
prices and gross margins than we had realized from sales of our other memory chip products. In
addition, in 2000, we recognized licensing and royalty revenue for the first time, which contributed
$933,000 to gross profit for the year. Also, gross profit increased as a percentage of revenue, growing
from 34.5% in 1999 to 58.8% in 2000 mainly due to the higher proportion of the 1T-SRAM memory chip
sales, which have had higher gross margins than the MDRAM and SGRAM memory chips that dominated
sales in prior periods.

Research and Development. In 2001, research and development expense increased to $4.4 million
due to additions to the engineering staff, and expanded engineering support to cur licensing activities. In
addition, we established an engineering design center in Secul, Korea in June 2001. Engineering expense
incurred in 2001 and recorded as cost of license revenue was $597,000. Research and development
expense increased to $3.3 million in 2000 from $3.1 million in 1999 as we added staff to support
continued development of the 1T-SRAM technology and cur expanding licensing activities. We recorded
approximately $333,000 of engineering expense, incusred in 2000, as cost of license revenue.

Selling, General and Administrative. In 2001, selling, general and administrative expense
increased to $4.7 million. This increase reflected the addition of administrative, sales and marketing staff
and the expansion of intellectual property marketing activities. Selling, general and administrative
expense increased to $3.5 million in 2000 from $2.4 million in 1999 due primarily tc expansion of our
sales and marketing activities in selling memory chips and licensing our technology. In addition, our rent
and facility expense increased with our July 2000 move into additional space in our existing headquarters
building. Selling, general and administrative expense in 1999 included bad debt expense of $161,000. Of
this amount, $143,000 was attributable to cne customer that filed for bankruptcy

Interest Income and Interest Expense. Interesi income reflects interest earned on average cash,
cash equivalents and short-term investments. Interest income was $1.8 million, $1.2 million, and
$520,000 in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. The fluctuation in interest income levels corresponds to
differences in average cash balances for the periods and the interest rates, which declined significantly in
2001. In 2001, interest income increased due to higher average cash balances, which included proceeds
from our July 2001 initial public offering, and was partially offset by a decline in interest rates. Interest
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income in 2000 was more than double that of 1999 due primarily to cash received from a preferred stock
financing of $5.2 million in May 2000 and the receipt of §5.2 million of contract fee payments during
2000. We incurred no interest expense in 2001, 2000 or 1999.

Deferred stock-based compensation cost to employees. During the years ended December 31,
2001, 2000 and 1999, the Company recorded deferred compensation of approximately $1.5 million,
$2.4 million and $828,000, respectively.

Provision for Income Taxes. Provisions for income taxes of approximately $367,000, $308,000 and
$67,000 were recorded in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. At December 31, 2001, we had net
operating loss carry-forwards of approximately $3,000,000 and approximately $2,000,000 for federal and
state tax purposes, respectively, that we expect to be available to reduce future income tax liabilities to
the extent permitted under federal and applicable state income tax laws. Those net operating losses are
subject to an annual limitation of approximately $774,000 pursuant to Section 382 of the Internal
Revenue Code. Those net operating loss carry-forwards expire from 2002 to 2020. In 2002, we anticipate
that our effective income tax rate will be less than the full corporate tax rate but higher than last year for
financial reporting purposes.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of December 31, 2001, we had cash and cash equivalents of $47.4 million and short-term
investments of $36.9 million. As of the same date, the Company had total working capital of $82.3 mil-
lion. In July 2001, the Company completed the sale of a total of 5,750,000 shares of common stock in its
initial public offering. The Company realized total net proceeds of approximately $51.6 million upon the
close of the IPO. Our primary capital requirements are to fund working capital needs. We believe that our
current focus on licensing and royalty revenues and reduced levels of memory chip sales has lessened the
volatility of our business and generally have enabled us to steadily improve our cash position.

Net cash provided by operating activities was $8.4 million, $4.7 million and $3.6 million for the years
ended 2001, 2000, and 1999, respectively. In 2001, net cash provided by operating activities was
$8.4 million, which resulted principally from net profit of $7.0 million, a non-cash charge of $1.4 million
for stock based compensation, reduction of accounts receivable of $1.3 million offset by $2.7 million
decrease in deferred revenue. The reduction in deferred revenue in 2001 resulted from recognizing
more licensing and pre-paid royalty revenues than additional license fees collected from our customers.
In 2001, license fees of $5.0 million were received from our customers. Net cash provided by operating
activities in 2000 resulted principally from a net profit of $1.3 million and a non-cash charge of $1.1 mil-
lion for stock based compensation. In addition, in 2000 we were paid license fees of $5.2 million, which
were recorded as deferred revenue and which were partially offset by the recognition of $1.4 million of
license revenue. Cash generated by operations in 2000 was offset by an inventory increase of $1.1 mil-
lion. Net cash provided by operating activities in 1999 consisted of reductions of accounts receivable and
inventory in the amounts of $1.0 million and $3.4 million, respectively. In addition, we collected
$2.0 million in contract fees in 1999 and recorded them as deferred revenue. Cash generated from
operations in 1999 was offset by the decline in accounts payable of $3.8 million, primarily because we
reduced our inventory purchases.
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Net cash used in investing activities was approximately $38.4 million, §659,000 and $726,000 for the
years ended 2001, 2003 and 1999, respectively. Investing activities have consisted mainly of engineering
design software purchases and the increase in 2001 resulted primarily from the establishment of our
engineering design center in Korea. In addition, in 2001, we had activities in investing in short-term
marketable securities of $36.9 million, net.

Net cash provided by financing activities were $54.0 million, $6.6 million and $65,000 in for the
years ended 2001, 2000 and 1999. In 2001, we received total net proceeds of §51.6 million upon the
close of our IPO in July. In addition, $2.0 million was received from the exercise of warrants and common
stock options. In 2000, $5.2 million was received from the sale of redeemable convertible preferred stock
and $1.4 million was received from the exercise of common stock options and a warrant.

Our future liquidity and capital requirements are expected to vary from quarter to quarter, depend-
ing on numerous factors, including—

¢ level and timing of licensing and memory chip sales revenues;

° cost, timing and success of technology development efforts;

° market acceptance of our existing and future technologies and products;

o competing technological and market developments;

o cost of maintaining and enforcing patent claims and intellectual property rights; and
° variations in manufacturing yields, materials costs and other manufacturing risks.

We expect that the net proceeds of our initial public offering, together with our existing capital and
cash generated from operations, if any, will be sufficient to meet our capital requirements for the
foreseeable future. We expect that a licensing business such as ours generally will require less cash to
support operations after multiple licensees begin to ship products and pay royalties. However, we cannot
be certain that we will not require additicnal financing at some point in time. Should our cash resources
prove inadequate, we might need to raise additional funding through public or private financing. There
can be no assurance that such additional funding will be available tc us on favorable terms, if at all. The
failure to raise capital when needed could have a material, adverse effect on our business and financial
condition.

Recemt Accounting Pronouncememnts

In July 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (‘‘FASB”) issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 141 (‘°SFAS 141""), “Business Combinations.” SFAS 141 requires the purchase
method of accounting for business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001 and eliminates the pool-
ing-of-interests method. To date, we have not had any business combination transactions.

In July 2001, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142 (*‘SFAS 142"),
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” which is effective for fiscal years beginning after March 15, 2001.
SFAS 142 requires, among other things, the discontinuance of goodwill amortization. [n addition, the
standard includes provisions upon adoption for the reclassification of certain existing recognized
intangibles such as goodwill, reassessment of the useful lives of existing recognized intangibles, reclassifi-
cation of certain intangibles out of previously reported goodwill and the testing for impairment of
existing goodwill and other intangibles. We do not currently have goodwill or other intangible assets.

In October 2001, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144 (“‘SFAS No.
144", “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”, which is required to be applied
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starting with years beginning after December 15, 2001. SFAS 144 requires, amongst other things, the
application model for long-lived assets that are impaired or to be disposed of by sale. The adoption of
SFAS 144 is not expected to have a significant impact on our financial statements.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Discussion of Market Interest Rate Risk

Our investment portfolio consists of money market funds, corporate-backed debt obligations and
mortgage-backed government obligations generally due within one year. Qur primary objective with its
investment portfolio is to invest available cash while preserving principal and meeting liquidity needs. In
accordance with our investment policy, we place investments with high credit quality issuers and limits
the amount of credit exposure to any one issuer. These securities, which approximate $61,876,000 as of
December 31, 2001, and have an average interest rate of approximately 2.95%, are subject to interest rate
risks. However, based on the investment portfolio contents and our ability to hold these investments
until maturity, we believe that if a significant change in interest rates were to occur, it would not have a
material effect on our financial condition.

ITtem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Reference is made to the financial statements listed under the heading (a) (1) Financial Statements
and Report of Ernst & Young LLP of Item 14, which financial statements are incorporated by reference in
response to this Item 8.
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Quarterly Results of Operations

The following tables set forth unaudited results of operations data for the eight quarters ended
December 31, 2001. This unaudited information has been prepared on a basis consistent with our
audited financial statements appearing elsewhere in this report and, in the opinion of our management,
includes all adjustments, consisting only of normal recurring adjustments, necessary for a fair presenta-
tion of the information for the periods presented. The unaudited quarterly information should be read in
conjunction with the financial statements and notes included elsewhere in this report.

Dec. 31, Sep. 30, June 30, Mar. 31, Dec. 31, Sep.30, Jume 30, Mar 31,

2001 2001 2001 2001 2000 2000 2000 2000
Net revenue:
Product . ............. $ 3,186 $ 2,746 $ 3,151 $ 3,908 $ 4,665 $ 4,200 $2,311 §1,717 ’
Licensing. . ........... 1,666 1,919 1,949 519 638 342 400 60
Royalty .............. 1,895 1,117 301 133 10 — _ —

6,747 5,782 5,401 4,560 5313 4,542 2,711 1,777

Cost of net revenue:

Product . .. ........... 1,538 1,273 1,256 1,709 1,791 1,645 1,191 761
Licensing . . ... ........ 186 208 91 148 132 118 225 42
1,724 1,481 1,347 1,857 1,923 1,763 1,416 803

Gross profit . . ... ... ... 5,023 4,301 4,054 2,703 3,390 2,779 1,295 974
Research and development. . 1,202 1,217 1,160 840 903 808 864 766
Selling, general and

administrative ... ...... 1,132 1,236 1,188 1,129 1,183 1,002 666 672
Stock-based compensation

charge . . ............. 263 324 493 357 495 248 235 1087

Total operating expenses . 2,597 2,777 2,841 2,326 2,581 2,058 1,765 1,545
Income (loss) from

operations . . ... ....... 2,426 1,524 1,213 377 809 721 (470) (57D
Interest and other income . . 492 700 259 367 381 309 297 162
Provision for income taxes . . (146) (111) (73) 37) (219) 89) — —
Net income (loss) .. ... ... $ 2772 % 2,113 $ 1,399 $ 707 § 971 $ 941 8 (173) $ (409)
Net income per share:
Basic . ... $ 098 078 .13% 078 098 09§ (02)8 (04
Dilated . .. ............. $ 098 078 058 033% 048 04 9% (02)% (09

Shares used in computing
net income per share:

Basic ................. 29,380 28,590 10,600 10,367 10,302 10,031 9,896 9,817
Diluted. ... ............ 31,550 30,554 25,630 25967 25,892 25,640 9,896 9,817

Item 9. Chawnges in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial
Disclosure

On November 16, 2001, we filed Form 8-K to report a change in independent accountants. There
were no disagreements with preceding independent accountants on any matter of accounting principles
or practices, financial statement disclosure, or auditing scope or procedure.
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Part III
Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

Information regarding our directors is incorporated by reference from the Sections titles ‘“Manage-
ment” and “Section 16 (A) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” in the Registrant’s Proxy
Statement for its 2002 Annual Meeting of Stockholders. Information regarding current executive officers
found under the heading ‘‘Executive Officers” in Item 1 of Part I hereof is also incorporated by reference
into this Item 10.

Items 11. Executive Compensaiion

The response to this item is incorporated by reference from the Section titles ‘‘Executive Compensa-
tion”’, but not from the Sections titled “‘Executive Compensation—Performance Graph’’ and “‘Executive
Compensation—Report on Executive Compensation by the Compensation and Management Develop-
ment Committee of the Board of Directors”, in the Registrant’s Proxy Statement for its 2002 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders.

Item 12. Security Quwnership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

The response to this item is incorporated by reference from the Section titled “‘Share Ownership of
Certain Beneficial Owners and Management: in the Registrant’s Proxy Statement for its 2002 Annual
Meeting of Shareholders.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions
The response to this item is incorporated by reference from the Section titled “Certain Relationships
and Related Transactions” in the Registrant’s Proxy Statement for its 2002 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders.
Part IV
Item 14. Exhbibits, Financial Statement Schedules and Reports on the Form 8K
(a) The following documents are filed as part of this report:

(1) Financial Statements and Report of Ernst & Young LLP Independent Accountants, and report of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP Independent Accountants which are set forth in the index to
Consolidated Financial Statements on pages F-1 through F-22 of this report.

Page
Report of Ernst & Young LLP Independent Accountants . ... ........................ F-1
Report of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP Independent Accountants . . . ... ............... F-2
Consolidated Balance Sheets. . . . . . ... . . . e F-3
Consolidated Statements of Income. . . . . . . . . . ... . F-4
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit) . . ... ... ... .. ... .. ... .. ... F-5
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows . . . . . . .. ... ... ... . .. . .. e F-6
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements . . . ... ... ... ... . . . .. F-7

(2) Financial Statement Schedule—Schedule [I—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

(3)  Exhibits
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Merger Agreement regarding the Registrant’s reincorporation in Delaware

Not currently in use

Not currently in use

Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Regisirant

Bylaws of the Registrant

Specimen common stock certificate

Third Amended and Restated Investor Rights Agreement dated September 27, 1997
Rights Agreement

Form of Indemnity Agreement between the Registrant and each of its directors and
executive officers

1992 Stock Option Plan and form of Option Agreement thereunder

1996 Stock Plan and form of Option Agreement thereunder

Form of Restricted Stock Purchase Agreement

2000 Employee Stock Option Plan and form of Option Agreement thereunder

2000 Employee Stock Purchase Plan and form of Subscription Agreement thereunder

Standard Industrial Lease, dated September 24, 1996, between the Registrant and
McCandless Properties

First Amendment to Lease, dated June 30, 2000, between the Registrant and McCandless
Properties

Agreement between Nintendo Co., Ltd. and the Registrant dated August 31, 1999
License Agreement between NEC Corporation and the Registrant dated January 31, 1999

License Agreement between NEC Corporation and the Registrant dated December 17,
1999

Employment Agreement between Registrant and F. Judson Mitchell dated July 17, 2000
List of subsidiaries

Consent of Ernst & Young LLP Independent Accountants

Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP Independent Accountants

Power of Attorney

Incorporated by reference to the same-numbered exhibit to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1, as amended, originally filed August 4, 2000, declared effective
June 27, 2001 (Commission file No. 333-43122).

Portions of this exhibit have been omitted pursuant to Order Granting Confidential
Treatment Under the Securities Act of 1933 dated June 27, 2001 (Commission File
No. 333-43122—CF#10183).

Set forth on page 43 of this report.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized, on the 20th day of March 2002.

MONOLITHIC SYSTEM TECHNOLOGY, INC.

By: /s/ Fu-Chieh Hsu

Fu-Chieh Hsu
Chairman of the Board, President and
Chief Executive Officer

By: /s/ F. JUDSON MITCHELL

F. Judson Mitchell
Vice President, Finance and
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer) and
Secretary

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes
and appoints Fu-Chieh Hsu and E Judson Mitchell, and each of them, as his true and lawful attor-
neys-in-fact and agents, with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for him and in his name, place
and stead, in any and all capacities, to sign any and all amendments to his Report on Form 10-X, and to
file the same, with all exhibits thereto, and other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities
and Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorneys-in-fact and agents, and each of them, full power
and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing requisite and necessary to be done in
connection therewith, as fully to all intents and purposes as he might or could do in person, hereby
ratifying and confirming all that said attorneys-in-fact and agents, or any of them, or their or his substitute
or substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed
below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates
indicated.

Signature Title Date

Chairman of the Board, President
and Chief Executive Officer March 20, 2002
(Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ Fu-CHIEH Hsu
Fu-Chieh Hsu

Vice President, Finance and Chief Financial
Officer (Principal Financial and Accounting March 20, 2002
Officer) and Secretary

/s/ F. JUDSON MITCHELL
F. Judson Mitchell

/s/ CARL E. BERG
Carl E. Berg

Director March 20, 2002
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Signature

/s/ DENNY R. S. Ko

Denny R. S. Ko

/s/ WINGYU LEUNG

Wingyu Leung

/s/ WEI YEN

Wei Yen

Title

Director

Director

Director
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Date

March 20, 2002

March 20, 2002

March 20, 2002
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Monolithic System Technology, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Monolithic System Technol-
ogy, Inc. as of December 31, 2001 and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders’
equity, and cash flows for the year then ended. Our audit included the financial statement schedule listed
in the Index at [tem 14(a) for the year ended December 31, 2001. These consolidated financial state-
ments and schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements and schedule based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of Monolithic System Technology, Inc. at December 31,
2001, and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended, in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. Also, in our opinion, the
related financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic financial statement taken
as a whole, presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein.

/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP

San Jose, California
January 17, 2002




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
of Monolithic System Technology, Inc.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2000 and the
related consolidated statements of income, of stockholders’ equity (deficit) and of cash flows for each of
the two years in the period ended December 31, 2000 present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position, results of operations and cash flows of Monolithic System Technol-
ogy, Inc. at December 31, 2000 and for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2000, in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. In addition, in
our opinion, the financial statement schedule listed in the index appearing under Item 14 (a) (2) for each
of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2000 presents fairly, in all material respects, the
information set forth therein when read in conjunction with the related financial statements. These
financial statements and financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s manage-
ment; our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and financial statement
schedule based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstate-
ment. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

San Jose, California
February 26, 2001




MONQLITHIC SYSTEM TECHNOLOGY, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except per share data)

December 31,

2001 2000
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents . . ... ... ... . . .. ... ... . $ 47,363 $ 23,397
Short-term INVESIMENTS . . . . . . . . .ttt e e 36,930 —
Accounts receivable, et ... ... ... L 208 1,546
INVENTOTIES . . . . o o v vt e e e e 1,693 2,145
Prepaid expenses and other current assets .. .. .................... 1,506 1,704
Total CUrrent asS€IS . . . . . . o v i i e 87,700 28,792
Property and eQUIpMEnt, MEt. . . . . . o vttt e 1,668 950
Other assets . . . . . . . e 923 56
Total assets . . . . . .. $ 89,461 § 29,798
LIABILITIES, MANDATORILY REDEEMABLE
CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK AND
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT)
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable ... ... ... ... 3 254 § 915
Accrued expenses and other liabilities . . . .. ... ... ... . L L 1,820 1,171
Deferred revenue . . . . . ... e e e 3,283 5,973
Total current liabilities . . . . ... ... .. .. ... ... 5,357 8,059

Commitments and contingencies
Mandatorily redeemable convertible preferred stock, $8.01 par value; 20,000
shares authorized; 6,582 shares issued and outstanding at December 31,
2000, . . . e — 35,591
Stockholders’ equity (deficit):
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value; 20,000 shares authorized; none issued and
outstanding at December 31, 2001 and December 31, 2000 ....... ... - —
Common stock, $0.01 par value; 120,000 shares authorized; 29,492 shares
and 10,352 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2001 and

December 31, 2000 . . . . . ... 295 103
Additional paid-in capital . . . . ... . 96,272 6,342
Notes receivable from stockholders. . . . ....... ... .. ... ... .. ... ... (253) (408)
Deferred stock-based compensation . ......... ... ... ... ... (1,406) (2,078)
Accumulated other comprehensive income . ... ... ... L L 16 —
Accumulated deficit . . ... .. ... L (10,820) (17,811)

Total stockholders’ equity (deficit) . . . .. ....... ... ... ... ... .. .. 84,104  (13,852)

Total liabilities, mandatorily redeemable convertible preferred stock
and siockholders’ equity (deficit) ... ......... ... .. .. .. .... $ 89,461 § 29,798

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statemenits.
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MONOLITHIC SYSTEM TECHNOLOGY, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(In thousands, except per share data)

Year Ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999
Net revenue:
PROAUCE « .« . o oo e $12,991 $12,893 $15,356
LICensing . . . .. .. .. 6,053 1,440 —
Rovalty . . ... e 3,446 10 —

22,490 14,343 15,356

Cost of net revenue:

ProduCt . . .. .. 5,776 5,388 10,062
LiCensing . . . .. ... 633 517 —
6,409 5,905 10,062

Gross profit. . . .. ... 16,081 8,438 5,294

Operating expenses:

Research and development . . ... . ... . ... ... ... ... ... .... 4,420 3,341 3,110
Selling, general and administrative . . . . .................... 4,686 3,523 2,388
Stock-based compensation expense . . ... ... ... ... 1,435 1,085 107
Total Operating exXpenses . . .. . .. ... .. 10,541 7,949 5,605
Income (loss) from operations . ... ......... .. .. . L 5,540 489 (311)
Interest and other income .. .. ... .. ... ... . .. .. .. ... ... 1,818 1,149 520
Income before income taxes . . . . ... ..., .. ... ... 7,358 1,638 209
Provision for income taxes . . ... ..... ... ... ... (367) (308) (67)
Netincome . ... ... ... . . $ 6991 $ 1,330 § 142

Net income per share:
BasiC . . . $ 035 % 013 § .01

Diluted . .. ... ... $ 025 % 005 8§ .01

Shares used in computing net income per share:
Basic . . . 19,769 10,013 9,727
Diluted .. ... .. .. 28,390 25,624 23,320

Allocation of stock-based compensation to operating expenses:
Research and development . . ... ... ... ... ... ... ....... . $ 781 8 574 § 56
Selling, general and administrative . . . .. ... ............... 654 511 51

$ 1,435 §$ 1,085 § 107

R

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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MONOLITHIC SYSTEM TECHNOLOGY, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT)
(In thousands)

Notes
M A%ﬁggﬁal Reff::)\;na;bﬂe Stﬂc);:gzgfsid Comgihkfgnsive Accumulated
Shares Amoumt Capital Stockholders Compensation Income Defficit Total

Balance at December 31, 1998 9,697 $ 97 § 1,185 $ — $  — $— $(19,283) $(18,001)
Issuance of Common Stock

upon exercise of options . . 107 1 64 — — — — 65
Stock options granted in

exchange of services ... .. — — 21 — — — — 21
Deferred stock-based

compensation . . ... ... .. — — 828 — (828) — — —
Amortization of deferred

stock-based compensation . — — — — 107 — — 107
Net and comprehensive

income .............. — — — — — —_ 142 142
Balance at December 31, 1999 9,804 98 2,098 — (721) — (19,141)  (17,666)
Issuance of Common Stock

upon exercise of options . . 381 4 720 (408) — — — 316
Issuance of Common Stock

upon exercise of warrants . . 167 1 1,082 — — — — 1,083
Deferred stock-based

compensation . . . ... .. .. — — 2,442 — (2,442) — — —
Amortization of deferred

stock-based compensation . — — — — 1,085 — — 1,085
Net and comprehensive

income .............. _ —_— —_ — — — 1,330 1,330
Balance at December 31, 2000 10,352 103 6,342 (408) (2,078) — (17,811) (13,852)
Issuance of Common Stock in ‘

initial public offering, net of

issuance costs . . . . ... ... 5,750 58 51,496 — — —_ — 51,554
Conversion of preferred stock

into common stock . ... .. 12,731 127 35,464 — — — — 35,591
Issuance of Common Stock

upon exercise of options .. 310 3 784 — — — — 787
Issuance of Common Stock

upon exercise of warrants. . 349 4 1,423 277) — — — 1,150
Repayment of note issued to

stockholder . .......... — — —_ 432 — — — 432
Deferred stock-based

compensation . . . ... .... — — 1,464 — (1,464) — — —_

Amortization of deferred

stock-based compensation

and other change in

employee status . . ... ... —_ — (701) — 2,136 — — 1,435
Other comprehensive

income—unrealized gain on

available-for-sale

investments . .......... — — — — — 16 — 16
Net Income . . ... .. ...... — — — — — — 6,991 6,991
Comprehensive income . . . . . — — —_ — — — — 7,007
Balance at December 31, 2001 29,492 $295  $96,272 $(253) $(1,4006) $16 $(10,820) § 84,104

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

E-5




MONQLITHIC SYSTEM TECHNOLOGY, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)

Year Ended December 31,
2001 2000 1999

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income . . . . . .. . $ 6,991 % 1,330 § 142
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization . ... .................... 811 487 901
Issuance of stock options for services . ... ............... — — 21
Amortization of deferred stock-based compensation . ... .. ... 1,435 1,085 107
Interest income on notes receivable from stockholder .. ... .. (38) — —
Changes in current assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable . . ... ... . L 1,338 45 1,063
INVENTOTIES . . o o v v ot e et e e e e 452 (1,096) 3,393
Prepaid expenses and other assets . . . ................. 161 (1,417) (210)
Deferred revenue . .. ... .. ... (2,690) 3,928 2,045
Accounts payable ... ... ... ... . o (661) 268 (3,837)
Accrued expenses and other liabilities .. ............... 649 107 6
Net cash provided by operating activities . . . . ... ... .. .. 8,448 4,737 3,631
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of property and equipment ... .................. (1,529) (659) (726)
Purchase of available-for-sale investments ... ............... (44,414) — —
Proceeds from maturity of available-for-sale investments . . . . .. .. 7,500 — —
Net cash used in investing activities . ................ (38,443) (659) (726)
Cash flows from fimancing activities:
Repayment of notes receivable from stockholder . . ... ... ... .. 432 — —
Proceeds from issuance of redeemable convertible preferred stock — 5,200 —
Proceeds from issuance of common stock upon exercise of
OPHONS . . o o e et et e 787 316 65
Proceeds from exercise of common stock warrants . . ... ... ... 1,188 1,083 —
Net proceeds from initial public offering of common stock. . . . .. 51,554 — —
Net cash provided by financing activities . . . ... ... ... .. 53,961 6,599 65
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents. . . . ....... ... .. .. .. 23,966 10,677 2,970
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period . . .. ... .. ... .. . 23,397 12,720 9,750
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period . ... ............ .. $ 47,363 $23,397 §$12,720
Supplemental disclosure:
Cash paid for income taxes . ........................... $ 110 $ — 8 —
Conversion of preferred stock to common stock . ... ... ...... $ 35,591 ¢ — 8 —

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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MONOLITHIC SYSTEM TECHNOLOGY, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1—The Company and Sumumary of Significant Accounting Policies:
The Company

Moncolithic System Technology, Inc. (the “Company’’) was incorporated in California on Septem-
ber 16, 1991 to design, develop and market high performance semiconductor memory products and
technologies used by the semiconductor industry and electronic product manufacturers. On Septem-
ber 12, 2000, the stockholders approved the Company’s reincorporation in Delaware.

The Company has developed an innovative embedded-memory technology, called 1T-SRAM, which
the Company licenses on a non-exclusive and worldwide basis to semiconductor companies and elec-
tronic product manufacturers. From its inception in 1991 through 1998, the Company focused primarily
on the sale of stand-alone memory products. In the fourth quarter of 1998, the Company changed the
emphasis of its business model to focus primarily on the licensing of its 1T-SRAM technology.

The Company closed the sale of a total of 5,750,000 shares of common stock in July 2001 in an initial
public offering (“IPO’”") at a price of $10.00 per share. The Company realized total net proceeds of
approximately $51.6 million upon the close of the IPO.

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned
subsidiary. All significant intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidatio.

Reporting periods

Prior to 2001, the Company operated and reported financial results on a 52-53 week fiscal year. In
2001, the Company changed to a calendar fiscal year. In 1999, 2000, and 2001, the fiscal years ended on
January 2, 2000, December 31, 2000 and December 31, 2001, respectively. The impact of this change is
immaterial. For convenience, the Company has presented its fiscal year as ending on December 31 for all
periods.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reported period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Estimates are made by management when accounting for licensing revenue using the percentage of
completion method because we can obtain reascnably dependable estimates of the costs to perform the
contracted services. During the contract performance period we review estimates of cost tc complete the
contracts as the contract progresses to completion and will revise cur estimates of revenue and gross
profit under the contract if we revise the estimations of the cost to complete. Our policy is to reflect any
revision in the contract gross profit estimate in reported income for the period in which the facts giving
rise to the revision become known.




MONOLITHIC SYSTEM TECHNOLOGY, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Comntinued)

Note 1—The Company and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

We state inventories at the lower of cost, determined using the first-in, first-out method, or market.
Our policy is to write down our inventory for estimated obsolescence or unmarketable inventory to the
extent the cost exceeds the estimated market value. We base the estimate on our assumptions about
future demand and market conditions. If actual market conditions are less favorable than those assumed
in our estimates, additional inventory write-downs may be required. Our policy is to reflect any revalua-
tion of inventory in reported income for the period in which the facts giving rise to the inventory
revaluation become known.

Foreign Currency Transiation

The functional currency of the Company’s foreign branch is the U.S. dollar. Accordingly, the financial
statements of this branch, which is maintained in the local currency, is remeasured into U.S. dollars in
accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 52, “Foreign Currency Translation.”
Exchange gains or losses from remeasurement of monetary assets and liabilities that are not denomi-
nated in U.S. dollar were not material for any period presented and are included in the consolidated
statements of operations.

Cash Equivalents and Short-term Investments

The Company invests its excess cash in money market accounts and debt instruments and considers
all highly liquid debt instruments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash
equivalents. Investments with an original maturity at the time of purchase of over three months are
classified as short-term investments regardless of maturity date as all investments are classified as
available-for-sale and can be readily liquidated to meet current operational needs.

The Company accounts for investments in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 115 ‘“Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities””. Management
determines the appropriate classification of debt securities at the time of purchase. The Company’s
short-term investments are carried at fair value, based on quoted market prices, with the unrealized
holding gains and losses reported in stockholders’ equity. Realized gains and losses and declines in the
value judged to be other-than-temporary are included in interest income. The cost of securities sold is
based on the specific identification method. All securities have maturities of one year or less.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost, determined using the first-in, first-out method, or market.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is generally computed using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, generally three years.

The Company evaluates the recoverability of its long-lived assets in accordance with Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (“‘SFAS No. 1217), “Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets
and for Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed of.” SFAS No. 121 requires recognition of impairment of
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MONOLITHIC SYSTEM TECHNOLOGY, INC.
NOTES TO CONSQOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continmed)

Note 1—The Company and Sumumary of Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

long-lived assets in the event the net book value of such assets exceeds the future undiscounted cash
fiows attributable to such assets. In that event, a loss is recognized based on the amount by which the
carrying value exceeds the fair value of the long-lived asset. Fair value is determined primarily using the
anticipated cash flows discounted at a rate commensurate with the risk involved. Losses on long-lived
assets to be disposed of are determined in a similar manner, except that fair values are reduced for the
cost of disposal. No losses from impairment have been identified or recognized in the financial
statements.

Capitalized software

Effective January 1, 1999, the Company adopted Statement of Position 98-1 (“SOP 98-1""), “Account-
ing for the Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use”. In accordance with
SOP 98-1, the Company capitalized certain internal use software totaling $2,006,000, $1,622,000 and
$1,369,000 in the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. The estimated useful life
of costs capitalized is evaluated for each specific project and approximates three years. The accumulated
depreciation of capitalized costs was $1,480,000, $1,271,000, and $1,078,000, respectively as of Decem-
ber 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999. Depreciation expense was $209,000, $193,000 and $408,000, respectively
for the years ended December 2001, 2000 and 1999.

Revenue recognition

The Company recognizes revenue when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery has
occurred, the sales price is fixed or determinable and collectibility is probable.

Revenue from product sales is recognized upon shipment to customers. The terms of all product
sales are FOB shipping point. The Company’s sales agreements do not provide for any customer
acceptance provisions. The Company has no obligation to provide any modification or customization,
upgrades, enhancements, post-contract customer support or add additional products or enhancement.
Upon shipment, the Company records reserves for estimated returns. There are no rights of return
unless the product does not perform according to specifications. Provisions for estimated returns, and to
a lesser degree potential warranty liability, are recorded when revenue is recognized.

Licensing revenue consists of fees paid for engineering development and engineering support
services. All contracts entered into to date require that the Company meet performance specifications.
For contracts involving performance specifications that the Company has not met, the Company defers
the recognition of revenue until the licensee manufactures products that meet the contract performance
specifications and recognizes this revenue using the completed contract method. Howevey, if the con-
tracts involve performance specifications that the Company has significant experience in meeting and the
cost of contract can be reasonably estimated, the Company recognizes revenue over the period in which
the contract services are performed using the percentage of completion method. Labor costs incurred are
used as a measure of progress towards completion. Fees collected prior to revenue recognition are
recorded as deferred contract revenue.




MONOLITHIC SYSTEM TECHNOLOGY, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Note 1—The Company and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

Licensing contracts provide also for royalty payments at a stated rate and require licensees to report
the manufacture or sale of products that include the Company’s technology after the end of the quarter
in which the sale or manufacture occurs. The Company recognizes royalties in the quarter in which the
Company receives the licensee’s report.

Cost of revenue

Cost of product revenue consists primarily of costs associated with the manufacture, assembly and
test of the Company’s memory chips by independent, third-party contractors.

Cost of licensing revenue consists primarily of engineering costs directly related to development
projects specified in contracts the Company has with licensees of its memory technology. For contracts
involving performance specifications that the Company has not previously met, and to the extent the
amount of engineering costs does not exceed the amount of the related contract revenue, engineering
costs are deferred on a contract-by-contract basis once the Company has established technological
feasibility of the product to be developed under the contract. Prior to this, the Company records these
costs as research and development expenses. Technological feasibility occurs when the Company has
completed all of the activities necessary to establish that the licensee’s product can be produced to meet
the performance specifications when incorporating the Company’s technology Deferred costs are
charged to cost of licensing revenue when the related revenue is recognized under the completed
contract method. For contracts involving performance specifications the Company previously met and
where the Company can reasonably estimate the development project cost, the Company charges
engineering costs to cost of licensing revenue when the engineering cost is incurred.

Research and development

Research and development costs are expensed as incurred.

Stock-based compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based compensation arrangements in accordance with the provi-
sions of APB No. 25 (“APB No. 25”), “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees’” and complies with the
disclosure provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 123 (“SFAS No. 123"),
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.” Under APB No. 25, compensation cost is, in general,
recognized based on the excess, if any, of the fair market value of the Company’s stock on the date of
grant over the amount an employee must pay to acquire the stock. Equity instruments issued to
non-employees are accounted for in accordance with the provision of SFAS No. 123 and Emerging Issues
Task Force 96-18. Deferred stock-based compensation is being amortized using the graded vesting
method in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 28 (“‘FIN No. 28")
over the vesting period of each respective option, which is generally four years. Under the graded vesting
method, each option grant is separated into portions based on its vesting terms, which results in
acceleration of amortization expense for the overall award compared to the straight line method.
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MONOLITHIC SYSTEM TECHNOLOGY, INC.
NOTES TQ CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Note 1—The Company and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (Comtinued)
Net income per share

Basic net income per share is computed by dividing net income for the period by the weighted-
average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the period. Diluted net income per share
is computed by dividing the net income for the period by the weighted average number of common and
potential common equivalent shares outstanding during the period. Potential common shares are
composed of incremental shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of stock options and
warrants and common stock issuable upon conversion of redeemable convertible preferred stock.

Income taxes

The Company accounts for deferred income taxes under the liability approach whereby the
expected future tax consequences of temporary differences between the book and tax basis of assets and
liabilities are recognized as deferred tax assets and liabilities. A valuation allowance is established for any
deferred tax assets for which realization is uncertain.

Comprebensive income

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 130 “Reporting Comprehensive Income’ (‘‘SFAS
No. 130") requires the Company to display comprehensive income and its components as part of the
financial statements. Comprehensive income includes certain changes in equity that are excluded from
net income. The Company’s only component of comprehensive income is unrealized gains and losses on
short-term investments for the year ended December 31, 2001. The Company had nc comprehensive
income other than net income in the year ended December 31, 1999 and 2000. Other comprehensive
income was $16,000 for the year ended December 31, 2001.

Segment reporting

Financial Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 131, “Disclosure about Segments of an Enter-
prise and Related Information” (“‘SFAS No. 131”) requires that companies report separately in the
financial statements certain financial and descriptive information about operating segments profit or
loss, certain specific revenue and expense items and segment assets. The Company operates in one
segment, using one measurement of profitability for its business. The Company has sales outside the
United States which are described in Note 8. All long-lived assets are maintained in the United States.

Recent accounting pronouncements

In July 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB’") issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 141 (““SFAS 141""), “Business Combinations.” SFAS 141 requires the purchase
method of accounting for business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001 and eliminates the pool-
ing-of-interests method. To date, the Company has not had any business combination transactions.

In July 2001, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142 (“‘SFAS 142"),
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” which is effective for fiscal years beginning after March 15, 2001.
SFAS 142 requires, among other things, the discontinuance of goodwill amortization. In addition, the
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MONOLITHIC SYSTEM TECHNOLOGY, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Note 1—The Company and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

standard includes provisions upon adoption for the reclassification of certain existing recognized
intangibles as goodwill, reassessment of the useful lives of existing recognized intangibles, reclassifica-
tion of certain intangibles out of previously reported goodwill and the testing for impairment of existing
goodwill and other intangibles. The Company currently does not have goodwill or other intangible
assets.

In October 2001, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144 (‘‘SFAS
No. 144"), “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets’’, which is required to be
applied starting with years beginning after December 15, 2001. SFAS 144 requires, amongst other things,
the application model for long-lived assets that are impaired or to be disposed of by sale. The adoption of
SFAS 144 is not expected to have a significant impact on the Company’s financial statements.
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MONOLITHIC SYSTEM TECHNOLOGY, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Cash and cash eguivalemnts:

Cash . ... .. ... .
Commercial and US government agencies paper

Short-term imvestmemnts:

US government debt securities . . . ... ... ..
Commercial paper .. .................
Corporate notes . . .. . ... ..o
Market auction preferred securities .. ... ..
Foreign debt securities . . ..............

Shori-term investments . . ..............

Accounts receivable:

Trade accounts receivable . ... ..........
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts . . . ..

Inventories:

Work-in-progress . . .. . ... ... ...
Finished goods . . ... .................

Prepaid expenses and other current costs:
Deferred costs of revenue . ... ..........
Deferred initial public offering costs . . . . . ..
Prepaid expenses and other assets . . ... ...

Property and equipment:

Equipment, furniture and fixtures . .......
Software. ... ...... ... ... . ... . ... ..

Less: Accumulated depreciation . ... ... ...

Accrued expemnses and other liabilities:

Warranty reserve . . ... ...
Accrued wages and employee benefits . . . . .
Assembly costs ... ....... ... ... ...,
Professional fees . . . ... ... ... .. .. ...
Deferredrent ... ....... ... ..........
Income taxes payable . ................
Other....... .. ... ... . .. . . . . . ...

F-13

Note 2—Details of Balance Sheet Components (in thousands):

December 31,

2001 2000
................. $22,417 $§ 2,019
............... 24,946 21,378
$47,363 $23,397
................. $17502 $ —
................. 6,473 —
................. 8,249 —
................. 2,603 -
................. 2,103 —
................. $36,930 $ —
................. $ 408 $ 1,746
................. (200)  (200)
$ 208 § 1,546
................. $ 1,297 § 1,698
................. 396 447
$ 1,693 § 2,145
................. g 661 § 90
................. — 1,139
................. 845 475
' $ 1,506 $§ 1,704
................. $ 3371 § 2,423
................. 2006 1,622
5377 4,045
................. (3,709)  (3,095)
$ 1668 8 950
................. $ 55 $ 155
................. 649 311
................. 25 135
................. 180 71
................. 266 104
................. 458 172
................. 187 223
$ 1,820 $ 1,171




MONOLITHIC SYSTEM TECHNOLOGY, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Note 3—Income Taxes:
The provision for income taxes consist of the following (in thousands):
Year Ended

December 31,
2001 2000 1999

Current portion:

US. federal . ... .. .. $261 8307 $65
State . . . .. 106 1 __E
$367 $308 $67

|

No deferred provision or benefit for income taxes has been recorded as the Company is in a net
deferred tax asset position for which a full valuation allowance has been provided due to the uncertainty
as to the realization.

Deferred tax assets consist of the following (in thousands):

December 31,

2001 2000
Deferred tax assets:
Federal and state loss carryforwards . ... ... ... ... ... .. ... .. .. $ 1,168 §$ 3,048
INVENOLY . . . oot e e 752 332
Reserves and accruals . . . .. ... ... .. ... 680 365
Deferred revenue . . .. ... . ... ... 920 388
Depreciation and amortization . . ... .......... ... .. ... ... 203 281
Research and development credit carryforwards . . . ... ... .. .. .. 1,050 1,666
4773 6,080
Less: Valuation allowance. . . ... ... .. ....... ... ... ....... ... (4,773  (6,080)
Net deferred tax asset . .. .. ... .. . .. .. ... L) —  § —

The valuation allowance decreased by $1,307,000 and $674,000, during the years ended Decem-
ber 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively. As of December 31, 2001, the Company had net operating loss
carryforwards of approximately $3,000,000 and approximately $2,000,000 for federal and state income
tax purposes, respectively. These losses are available to reduce taxable income and expire from 2002
through 2021. The Company also had federal and state research and development tax credit carryfor-
wards of approximately $850,000 and $170,000, respectively. In addition, the Company had manufactur-
ing investment credits of approximately $125,000. These credits will expire in the years 2002 through
2021. Because of certain changes in the ownership of the Company in December 1996, there is an annual
limitation of approximately $774,000 on the use of approximately $2,883,000 of the federal net operat-
ing loss carryforwards pursuant to Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code.
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MONOLITHIC SYSTEM TECHNOLOGY, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Comtinued)

Note 3—Income Taxes: (Continued)

A reconciliation of income taxes provided at the federal statutory rate (35% in 2001, 2000 and 1999)
to actual income tax expense follows:

2001 2000 1999

(in thousands)
Income tax provision computed at federal statutory rate ... ... . $2575 $573 $73
Utilization of NOL’s and tax credits . . . .. ... ... ........... 2,575) (573) (73)
Alternative muinimum taxes . . . . ... .o 367 308 67

$ 367 $308 §67

Note 4—Net Income Per Share:

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted net income per share for the
periods indicated (in thousands, except per share amounts):

Year Ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999
Numerator:
NEetinCome . . . . . ... it 36991 $ 1,330 § 142
Denominator:
Shares used in computing net income per share:
BASIC . o o 19,709 10,013 9,727
Employee stock options and unvested common stock
outstanding . ... ... ... L 1,581 1,686 1,512
WALTANTS . . o o e e 734 1,194 —_
Preferred stock . . . ... ... ... ... ... 6,366 12,731 12,081
Diluted .. ... ... . . .. 28,390 25,624 23,320
Net income per share:
BasiC . oot $§ 035 § 013 $ 001
Diluted .. . ... ... ... . $ 025 $ 005 % 001

Note 5—Mandatorily Redeemable Preferred Stock:
Conversion

In connection with our initial public offering in July 2001, all issued Preferred Stock automatically
converted into an aggregate of 12,731,000 shares of the Company’s common stock. As of December 31,
2001 there were no preferred shares outstanding.
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MONOLITHIC SYSTEM TECHNOLOGY, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Note 6—Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit):
Common Stock Warrants

The following table summarizes the activity of outstanding warrants (in thousands, except per share

amounts):
Common Exercise
Stock Price per
under Warrants Share
QOutstanding at December 31, 1999 . . . .. .. ... .. ... ... .. 3,482 $5.50-88.50
Exercised warrant . . .. ... ... ... .. e (167) $6.50
Outstanding at December 31,2000. .. ... .............. 3,315 $5.50-$8.50
Exercised warrants, granted to Series F and Series F-1
Preferred stockholders and Dell Computer. . .. ... ... .. (349) $ 0-8550
Expired warrants, previously granted to Series F and
Series F-1 Preferred stockholders and Dell Computer . . . . . (1,7606) $5.50-88.50
Outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2001 ... ... .. 1,200 $6.50

The following assumptions were applied when estimating the fair value of the above warrants using
the Black-Scholes option pricing model: dividend yield of 0%, risk-free interest rate of 5.45%-5.84%,
contractual terms of 3.5 years to 4.25 years and volatility of 40%-60%. The fair market values of common
stock underlying the above warrants ranged from $1.00 to $2.00 on dates of issuance. In June 2001, the
Company issued 90,000 shares of common stock to Dell Computer upon their cashless exercise of the
warrant to purchase 600,000 shares of common stock. This warrant had an exercise price of $8.50 per
share and was exercised on a net basis at a fair value of $10.00 per share of common stock, an amount
that approximated the initial public offering price in July 2001. In April 2001, the Company issued
259,000 shares of common stock pursuant to the exercise of warrants to purchase 1,515,000 shares of
common stock at $5.50 per share, and the balance of the warrants after the purchase of 1,256,000 shares
expired without exercise.

The following table summarizes the outstanding warrants as of December 31, 2001 (in thousands,
except per share amounts):

Fair Market
Common Exercise Value of the
Stock under Price Warrant at
Description of Warrants Issuance Date Warrants per Share Issuance Date Expiration Date

Warrant issued to a foundry
in connection with
termination of a capacity
agreement . .. ......... August 1998 1,200 $6.50 $127 November 2002

Total outstanding and
exercisable at
December 31, 2001 . .. .. 1,200

In conjunction with a series of agreements signed with TSMC, the foundry used by the Company to
manufacture its stand alone memory chips, the Company has issued 1,200,000 warrants at the price of
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MONOQOLITHIC SYSTEM TECHNOLOGY, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Note 6—Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit): (Continued)

$6.50 per share. The fair value of the warrant was determined to be $127,000 based on the Black-Scholes
method. The warrant was expensed in 1998.

In March 1999, the Company entered into a development and promotion agreement with TSMC.
This agreement required the Company to develop a demonstration macro for TSMC’s 0.25-micron
standard logic process. The Company completed its obligations under this agreement in the first quarter
of 2000. In January 2000, the Company announced 2 joint agreement with TSMC and Virage Logic to
develop 1T-SRAM compilers for TSMC’s 0.18-micron and 0.15-micron standard logic processes. Under
this agreement, compilers may be licensed, which enable the Company’s licensees and their customers
to automatically generate and configure 1T-SRAM designs. In April 2001, the Company announced an
agreement with TSMC to deliver two new high-density technologies in their most advanced siliccn. As
part of the April 2001 agreement, TSMC licensed the Company’s technology thus expanding its in-house
design capability and providing jointly customized memory micro design services to its customers.

In addition to the above agreements, the Company paid TSMC $3.8 million, $5.3 million and
7.8 million in fiscal 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively, for the purchase of wafers in connection with the
Company’s manufacture and sale of IT-SRAM memory chips.

Common Stock Option Plans

The 1992 Stock Option Plan (the “1992 Plan’") authorizes the board of directors to grant incentive
stock options and nonqualified stock opticns to employees, directors and consultants for up to
3,300,000 shares of common stock. Under the 1992 Plan, incentive stock options are to be granted at a
price not less than 100% of the fair value of the stock at the date of grant, as determined by the board of
directors. Nonqualified stock options are to be granted at a price not less than 85% of the fair value of the
stock at the date of grant, as determined by the board of directors. Options generally vest over a four-year
pericd and are exercisable for a maximum pericd of ten years after the date of grant. The 1992 Plan was
terminated in 1996, and no further options were granted under the plan.

In 1996, the Company adopted the 1996 Stock Pian (the 1996 Plan’") which authorizes the board of
directors to grant incentive stock options and nonqualified stock options to employees, directors and
consultants for up to 2,500,000 shares of common stock. The option terms under the 1996 Plan are
substantially the same as the 1992 Plan except that options granted under the 1996 Plan may be exercised
immediately. Common Stock purchased pursuant to the exercise of an unvested option is subject to
re-purchase by the Company, at the exercise price, under certain conditions. There were no shares of
common stock subject to repurchase at 1998 and 1999. There were 50,000 shares of common stock
subject to repurchase at December 31, 2000. Options generally vest over a four-year period and are
exercisable for a maximum period of ten years after the date of grant. In March 1997, the Company
canceled 918,500 options representing all unexercised options with exercise prices greater than $1.00,
and immediately reissued the options with an exercise price of $1.00.

F-17




MONOLITHIC SYSTEM TECHNOLOGY, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

The Company’s 2000 employee stock option plan (the “2000 plan’”) was adopted in October 2000
in connection with the Company’s reincorporation in the state of Delaware.

A total of 5,000,000 shares of common stock have been reserved for issuance under the 2000 plan. In
addition, the 2000 plan provides for an annual increase in the number of shares reserved under the plan
on January 1 of each year beginning in 2001, equal to the lesser of 500,000 shares, two percent of the
Company’s outstanding shares of common stock on such date or a lesser amount determined by the
board of directors.

The term of options granted under the 2000 plan may not exceed ten years. The term of all incentive
stock options granted to an optionee who, at the time of grant, owns stock representing more than 10%
of the voting power of all classes of the Company’s stock may not exceed five years. Generally, 25% of the
options granted under the 2000 plan will vest and become exercisable on the first anniversary of the date
of grant, and 1/48th of the options will vest and become exercisable each month thereafter.

The exercise price of incentive stock options granted under the 2000 plan must be at least equal to
the fair market value of the shares on the date of grant. The exercise price of nonstatutory stock options
granted under the 2000 plan will be determined by the board of directors, but in no event will be less
than 85% of the fair market value of the common stock on the date of grant. The exercise price of any
incentive stock option or nonstatutory stock option granted to a ten-percent stockholder must equal at
least 110% of the fair market value of the common stock on the date of grant.

A summary of the status of the Company’s stock option plans as of December 31, 1999, 2000 and
2001, and changes during the years ended on these dates are presented below (in thousands, except per
share amounts):

Options Outstanding

Weighted
Available Average
for Number of Exercise Exercise
Gramt Shares Price Prices
Balance at December 31, 1998 . ... ............ 1,578 1,952 $ 0.03-$1.00 80.85
Granted . . . ... ... ... (557) 557 $1.00 $1.00
Cancelled . ... ... ... ... . ... ... ... ... . ... 161 (161) § 0.50-$1.00 $0.99
Exercised . ........... .. . ... .. ... ... — (106)  $ 0.03-$1.00  $0.63
Terminated under the 1992 Plan . . . . ... .. ... ... (13) — —
Balance at December 31, 1999 ... ... ... ....... 1,169 2,242 $ 0.03-$1.00 $0.88
Authorized under the 2000 Plan . .. ... ......... 5,000
Granted . . ... ... ... (1,282) 1,282 $4.00-$10.00  $8.34
Cancelled . . .. ... ... ... .. ... . ... .. .... 392 (392) $1.00-310.00 $2.54
Exercised . ... ......... e — (381) § 0.17-88.00 $1.90
Balance at December 31,2000 .. ............ .. 5,279 2,751 $0.03-810.00  $3.98
Additional authorized under the 2000 Plan . . . . . . 207
Granted . . . .. ... ... ... (1,191 1,191 $6.00-12.01  $8.79
Cancelled . . . ................ ... ....... 588 (588) $0.03-$11.00 $3.71
Exercised . . ...... ... .. ... — (310)  80.50-$10.00  $2.72
Expired ungranted under the 1992 Plan . . . ... .. (246) — —
Balance at December 31, 2001 . ... ............ 4,637 3,044 $0.07-$12.01 $6.05
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Information relating to stock options outstanding at December 31, 2001 is as follows (in thousands,
except per share amounts):

Options Outstanding at December 31, 2001

Weighted . .
pAverage Becamber 31, 2001
emaining
Number Comtractual Life Weighted Average Number Weighted Average
Range of Exercise Price Outstanding (in Years) Exercise Price Outstanding Exercise Price
$0.07-$0.50 . . .. 19 2.72 % 0.26 19 $ 0.26
$1.00-84.00 . . .. 1,018 6.53 $ 1.02 774 $ 1.01
$6.00-$8.00 . . .. 1,185 8.90 8 735 195 $ 7.99
$10.00-812.01 . .. 822 9.32 $10.55 60 $10.04
3,044 1,048

Deferred stock-based compensation cost to employees

During the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, the Company recorded deferred
compensation of approximately $1,464,000, $2,442,000 and $828,000, respectively. This deferred com-
pensaticn represents the difference between the grant price and the fair value of the Company’s common
stock for financial statement reporting purposes during the period in which the options were granted.
Deferred compensation expense is being amortized using the graded vesting method, in accordance with
SFAS No. 123 and FASB Interpretation No. 28, over the vesting period of each respective option, generally
four years. Under the graded vesting method, each option grant is separated into portions based on their
vesting terms, which results in acceleration of amortization expense for the overall award compared to
the straight line method. The accelerated amortization pattern results in expensing approximately 52% of
the total award in year 1, 27% in year 2, 15% in year 3 and 6% in year 4.

SFAS No. 123 pro forma disclosures

Had compensation cost for the Company’s opticn plans been determined based on the fair value at
the grant dates, as prescribed in SFAS 123, the Company’s net income (loss) would have been as follows
(in thousands, except per share amounts):

Years Ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999
Net income:
Asreported . . ... ... $6,991 $1,330 $142
Proforma . . .. ... e $5,147 $1,101 8 (34)
Pro forma net income per share:
BasiC . . .. $ 026 %011 % —
Diluted . . .. .. . $ 018 3 004 § —

The fair value of each grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes method with the
following assumptions used for grants during the applicable period: dividend yield of 8% for all periods;
risk-free interest rates of 3.19% — 4.81%, for options granted in 2001, 6.19% and 6.0% for options granted
during 2000 and 1999, respectively; a weighted average expected option life of five years for all periods;
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and a volatility factor of .6318 for 2001, 0% for 1999 and 2000. The weighted average fair value of options
granted during 2001, 2000 and 1999 was $8.79, $7.75 and $1.87 respectively.

Employee stock purchase plan

The Company’s 2000 employee stock purchase plan was adopted in October 2000 in connection
with the Company’s Delaware re-incorporation, to become effective upon the pricing date of the
Company'’s initial public offering. A total of 200,000 shares of common stock have been reserved for
issuance under the purchase plan. In addition, the purchase plan provides for an annual increase in the
number of shares reserved under the plan on January 1 of each year, equal to the lesser of 100,000 shares,
one percent of the Company’s outstanding shares of common stock on such date or a lesser amount
determined by the board of directors. The purchase plan, which is intended to qualify under Section 423
of the code, is administered by the board of directors or a committee appointed by the board of directors.

Employees, including officers and employee directors but excluding 5% stockholders, are eligible to
participate if they are customarily employed for at least 20 hours per week and for more than five months
in any calendar year. The purchase plan permits eligible employees to purchase common stock through
payroll deductions, which may not exceed 10% of an employee’s compensation. Employees will be
permitted to invest a maximum of $25,000 in any offering period.

The purchase plan has been implemented in a series of overlapping offering periods, each to be
approximately 12 months in duration. The initial offering period under the purchase plan began on
June 27, 2001 and expires on July 1, 2002, which is the first day of the third offering period. Offering
periods begin on the first trading day on or after January 1 and July 1 of each year and end on the last
trading day in the period ending twelve months later. Each participant is granted an option on the first
day of the offering period, and such option will be automatically exercised at the end of month six of the
offering period and on the last day of the offering period. The purchase price of the common stock under
the purchase plan is equal to 85% of the lesser of the fair market value per share of common stock on the
start date of the offering period or on the date on which the option is exercised. Employees may end their
participation in an offering period at any time during that period, and participation ends automatically
on termination of employment with the Company.

The purchase plan will terminate in June 2010, unless sooner terminated by the board of directors.

As of December 31, 2001, no shares had issued under the purchase plan.

Notes receivable from related parties

On September 1, 2000, an officer of the Company exercised options to purchase 50,000 shares of
common stock in exchange for a promissory note as permitted under the 1996 Employee Stock Option
Plan. The $400,000 note is a full recourse note bearing interest of 6.37%. The note, and accrued interest
were paid in full on December 6, 2001.

In April 2001, certain holders of warrants issued in connection with Series F and F-1 preferred stock
exercised their option to purchase 43,000 shares of common stock at $5.50 per share, in exchange for
promissory notes. The notes total $239,000, are bearing interest of 9%, and are full recourse. The
principal and accrued and unpaid interest are due and payable on April 22, 2002.
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Note 7—Retirement Savings Plam:

Effective January 1997, the Company adopted the MoSys 401(k) Plan (the “Savings Plan’") which
qualifies as a thrift plan under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. All full-time employees who
are at least 21 years old are eligible to participate in the Savings Plan at the time of hire. Participants may
contribute up to 15% of their earnings to the Savings Plan. The Company may make a discretionary
matching amount. During the year ended December 31, 2001, the Company made matching contribu-
tions of $84,000. The Company did not make any contributions in any of the years ended December 31,
1999 and 2000.

Note 8S—Business Segments, Concentration of Credit Risk and Significant Customers:

The Company operates in a single industry segment. The Company supplies semiconductor memo-
ries to the electronics industry. This industry segment is characterized by rapid technological change and
significant competition.

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to significant concentrations of credit
risk consist principally of cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments and accounts receivable.
Cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments are deposited with high credit quality institutions.

The Company sells its products and licenses its 1T-SRAM technology to customers in the Far East,
North America and Europe as follows (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999
United States . . . . .. .. . ... e $12,405 $ 9,661 § 6,153
Japan .. .. 5,891 1,393 1,156
TAIWADN . . . oo e e e e 3,808 2,806 7,614
BULOPE - o o ot e e e e e e 386 483 433
Total . .o e $22,490 814,343 $15,356

Two customers accounted for 22% and 19% of net sales in 2001. One customer accounted for 26% of
net sales in 2000. Two customers accounted for 16% and 11% of net sales in fiscal 1999. Three customers
accounted for 31%, 23% and 19% of gross accounts receivable, respectively, at December 31, 2001. Two
customers accounted for 46% and 11% of gross accounts receivable, respectively, at December 31, 2000.
The Company performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers’ financial condition and maintains an
allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable based upon the expecied collectibility of all accounts
receivable. There were no amounts written off from accounts receivable in the years ended December 31,
2001 and 2000 respectively, while $161,000 was written off in the year ended December 31, 1999.

Note 9—Commitments and Contingencies:

The Company leases its corporate headquarters under a non-cancelable operating lease that expires
in 2005. The lease provides for monthly payments and is being charged to operations ratably over the
lease terms. In addition to the minimum lease payments, the Company is responsible for property taxes,
insurance and certain other operating costs.
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Note 9—Commitments and Contingencies: (Continued)

Future minimum lease payments under the non-cancelable operating lease as of December 31, 2001
are as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31, Operating Leases
2002 . $ 818
2003 . e 859
2004 ... e 902
2005 L 462
2000 . .. —
Total MINIMUM PAYMENTS . . . . .. oottt $3,041

Rent expense under the operating lease totaled $793,000, $466,000 and $134,000, for the years
ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

In the normal course of business, the Company from time to time may receive and make inquiries
with regard to possible patent infringement. Management believes that it is unlikely that the outcome of
any such patent infringement inquiries to date would have a material adverse effect on the Company’s
financial position, cash flows or results of operations.

F-22




(In thousamnds)

Schedule [I—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

S-1

Balance at Credited  Balance at
beginning of Charged to to end of
Description period expenses expenses period
Allowance for doubtful accounts receivable:
Fiscal year ended December 31, 2001 .. ... .. ... 8200 $ — 5 — $200
Fiscal year ended December 31, 2000 . ... ... ... 199 1 — 200
Fiscal year ended December 31, 1999 . ... ... ... $300 $ 60 $(161) $199
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initial public offering on June 28, 2001.

INDEP DENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC
ACCOUNTANTS

E

San Jose, California

GENERAL COURNSEL
McCutchen, Doyle, Brown & Enersen
Palo Alto, CA

TRANSFER AGENT
Wells Farge Bank Minnesota, N.A.
Shareowner Services

Post Office Box 64854

St. Paul, Minnesota 55164-0854
Telephone: 800-468-9716

Fax: 651-450-4033

INVESTOR RELATIONS

For additional copies of this report ar other financial
information, contact:

Iinvestor Relations

MoSys, Inc.

1020 Stewart Drive

Sunnyvale, CA 94085

408-731-1800

NORTHEAST REGIONAL SALES
9 Larchmont Road

Melrose, MA 02176

Telephone: 781-665-3122

Fax: 781-665-7667

INTERNATIONAL SALES OFFICE
MoSys, Inc.

PO Box 179

FIN-00171 Helsinki, Finland

Phone: +358-400-410216

Fax: +358-9-6849793

Additional information is available on MoSys's website at
WWW.Mosys.com

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

FU-CHIEH HSU
President, Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the
Board of Directors

WINGYU LEUNG
Executive Vice President of Engineering, Chief Technical Officer
and member of the Board of Directors

F. JUDSON MITCHELL
Vice President of Finance and Administration,
Secretary and Chief Financial Officer

MARK-ERIC JONES
Vice President and General Manager of Intellectual Property

ANDRE HASSAN
Vice President and General Manager of Discrete Products

OUTSIDE DIRECTORS

CARL BERG
President and General Partner of West Coast Venture Capital
Limited, L.P.

DENNY KO
Managing General Partner of DynaFund Ventures

WEI YEN
Director, Acer Groups

® MoSys 2002; MoSys®, 17-SRAM®, and MCache®, are MoSys
trademarks registered in the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office;

1T-SRAM-R™ 17-SRAM-M™ 1T-SRAM-X™ Transparent Error Correction’ "

and TEC™ are trademarks of MoSys.
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